
  

P a g e  1 | 4 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 8, 2023, 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

All members of the public seeking to observe and/or to address the local legislative body in person or otherwise 

electronically can do so in the manner described below.  

HOW TO OBSERVE THE MEETING:  

In-person: Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the 2nd Wednesday of each calendar month 

at 6:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District, 1351 Rollins Road, 

Burlingame, California. 

Telephone: Listen to the meeting via Zoom at (408) 636-0968 or (669) 900-6833.  

Enter the Meeting ID# 650-344-8592 followed by the pound (#) key.  If the line is busy, more phone numbers can 

be found on Zoom’s website at https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM.  

Computer: Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by navigating to 

https://zoom.us/j/6503448592 using a computer with internet access that meets Zoom’s system requirements (see 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux)  

Mobile: Log in through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter Meeting ID# 650-344-8592.  

 

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Live Participation: Public comments may be made by members of the public via Zoom. During the meeting, the 

Board President or designee will publicly announce the opportunity to comment. Use the “raise hand” feature (or 

press *9 to “raise hand” on the phone) during the public comment period for the agenda item you wish to address. 

The Zoom host will call on people to speak by the name provided or the last four digits of the phone number for 

dial-in attendees.  

Written Comments: Public comments may be submitted by email to comments@smcmvcd.org, write “Public 

Comment” in the subject line. In the body of the email, include the agenda item number and title, as well as your 

comments. If you want your comment read aloud at the meeting (not to exceed three minutes at staff’s cadence), 

prominently write “Read Aloud at Meeting” at the top of the email. All comments received before 12:00 PM, the 

day of the meeting, will be included as an agenda supplement on the District’s website under the relevant meeting 

date and provided to the Trustees at the meeting. Comments received after this time will be read aloud at the 

meeting.  

https://zoom.us/j/6503448592
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux
mailto:comments@smcmvcd.org


 

2 
 

 

 

ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION: 

Board Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities and others who need assistance.  Individuals who need 

special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to 

observe and/or participate in this meeting and access meeting-related materials should contact Brian Weber, District 

Manager, at least 48 hours before the meeting at (650) 344-8592 or bweber@smcmvcd.org.  Advanced notification 

will enable the District to resolve such requests to ensure accessibility swiftly. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS: 

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a meeting are available for public inspection.  

Those records distributed after the agenda posting deadline for the meeting are available for public inspection at the 

same time they are distributed to all or a majority of the members of the Board.  The Board has designated the District’s 

website at https://www.smcmvcd.org/board-meetings as the place to make those public records available for 

inspection.  The documents may also be obtained by calling the District Manager.  

 

CEQA NOTICE: 

Unless expressly stated otherwise on the agenda (that an MND or EIR is being considered), discretionary actions taken 

on agenda items will include a finding by the Board that the action is exempt under CEQA. More information about 

the CEQA determination can be found in the corresponding staff report. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL 

A. Secretary of the Board will take roll call 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

This time is reserved for public members to address the Board relative to matters of 

the District, not on the agenda.  No action may be taken on non-agenda items unless 

authorized by law. Comments will be limited to three minutes per person (or six 

minutes where a translator is used). Speaker cards are available for those making a 

public comment.

mailto:bweber@smcmvcd.org


 

3 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items on the Consent Calendar will be considered by one (or more) action(s) 

of the Board unless any Trustee would like to discuss any item listed, in which 

case, it may be pulled from the Consent Calendar.  

A. Approval of Minutes 

1. Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting February 8, 2023 

B. Approval of Purchases 

1. Approve the purchase of pesticides from the following sole source distributors: 

 Adapco - Metalarv S/PT in the amount of $33,849.57 

 Clarke - Natular G30 and Natular G in the amount of $23,058.42 

ACTION:  Motion to approve Consent Calendar 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

6.  BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS The Chair of each committee listed below will 

provide a report on the committee’s actions and present any recommendations to the Board  

A. Finance Committee Reports  

1.  Finance Committee Meeting Report – February 27, 2023 

Report by:  Mason Brutschy, Committee Chair 

B.  Review the Financial Report for FY 2022-23 as of January 31, 2023  

Report by:  Finance Director, Richard Arrow, CPA 

ACTION:  Motion to approve Financial Report for FY 2022-23 as of January 

31, 2023 

C.  Consider having the District Manager enter into a three-year Levy 

Administration Services Agreement between the District and SCI Consulting 

Group in the amount of $24,210 annually 



 

4 
 

Report by:  Brian Weber, District Manager 

 

ACTION:  Motion to approve having the District Manager enter into a three-

year Levy Administration Services Agreement with SCI Consulting 

Group in the amount of $24,210 annually 

 

D.   Consider establishing an alternative depository for District Funds 

   Report by:  Richard Arrow, Finance Director 

  ACTION:  Motion to allow District Manager to take all administrative    

                              actions to establish an alternate depository of District funds.  

            with CalCLASS in the amount of $200,000. 

 

E.   Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee and Standing Committee Assignments  

Report by: President Martin 

7.  STAFF REPORTS 

A. Operations Director Casey Stevenson will provide a PowerPoint presentation on the 

District Operations and the Mapvision database. 

B. Laboratory Director, Angie Nakano. Angie will provide an update on Laboratory 

activities. 

C. Public Health Education and Outreach Officer Rachel Curtis-Robles will provide a 

report on the District Public Outreach Program 

D. Information & Technology Director Matthew Nienhuis will provide a report on the 

District technology matters.         

8.  MANAGER’S REPORT 

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

10. ADJOURNMENT  



 
 

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
February 8, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees of the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
was held on February 8, 2023. Location: Teleconference 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: 

 
Mason Brutschy Atherton 
Chuck Cotten Belmont 
Carolyn Parker Brisbane 
Rena Galligan Burlingame (Arrived at 6:31 p.m.) 
Laura Walsh Colma 
Glenn R. Sylvester Daly City 
Donna Rutherford East Palo Alto 
Paul Norton Foster City 
Kati Martin Half Moon Bay 
D. Scott Smith Hillsborough 
Catherine Carlton Menlo Park 
Muhammad Baluom Millbrae 
Ray Williams Portola Valley 
Kat Lion Redwood City 
Robert Riechel San Bruno 
Ron Collins San Carlos 
Ed Degliantoni San Mateo (Arrived at 6:25 p.m.) 
Michael Yoshida South San Francisco 
Paul Fregulia Woodside 

 
TRUSTEES ABSENT: 
Desiree LaBeaud County-at-Large 
Peter DeJarnatt  Pacifica 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

 
 District Manager, Brian Weber 
Interim Finance Director, Richard Arrow  
General Counsel, Alexandra Barnhill  
Laboratory Director, Angie Nakano 
Public Health Education and Outreach Officer, Rachel Curtis-Robles 
Operation Director, Casey Stevenson  
IT Director, Matthew Nienhuis 



 
 

2 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TELECONFERENCE 
February 8, 2023, 6:00 PM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President Kati Martin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

          The roll call indicated that 17 Trustees were present on Teleconference, constituting a quorum. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Public Comment: None Board Comment: None 
 
President Martin reviewed the process going forward during the Teleconference of the meeting with the 
Board of Trustees, Staff, and Public. 
 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of February 8, 2023 
B. Approval of resolutions 019-23 authorizing remote teleconference meeting 
C. Retirement of two technician pickup trucks 

 
Public Comment: None              
Board Comment: None 
 
 

ACTION: MOTION by Trustee Ron Collins, second Trustee Mason Brutschy to approve 5.A.1, B, and 
C. Motion passed by 17 yeas, 0 noes. 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

6. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

A.1 Finance Committee 



 
 

3 
 

 
Chair Mason Brutschy reported that the Finance Committee met on January 30, 2023. The Committee 
submitted a written report in the Board packet. The Committee reviewed the Financial Report for FY 22-
23 as of December 31, 2022. 
 
Finance Director Arrow discussed a potential District fund investment alternative. Representatives of the 
two investment alternatives CalTrust and CalCLASS, have provided information to the District. The 
Finance Committee will recommend their next Finance meeting on February 27, 2023. The Committee 
also discussed the retirement of two District vehicles beyond their useful life. The committee recommended 
approval of these reports to the Board of Trustees on February 8, 2023. 

 
B. Finance Committee 

 

Finance Director Richard Arrow provided a written report in the Board packet. He reported that the 
District is solid financially. Mr. Arrow highlighted that on the December 2022 summary, accounts 
receivable were outstanding greater than 90 days total is $28,949 consisting of amounts due from 
CIPC. Updated receivables as of December 21, 2022, are $14,774 from California Invasive Plant 
Council. 

 
Public Comment: None 
Board Comment: 

Several Board members commented on the sale of the two trucks, as agendized on the Consent 
calendar. The Board asked questions about the possibility of purchasing electric trucks, and 
staff advised about previous efforts to electrify its fleet. From this discussion, an ad hoc sub-
committee was formed to work with staff on electric vehicle options; they are Trustees Collins, 
Sylvester, and Carlton. 

 
 

ACTION: MOTION by Trustee Paul Fregulia, second by Trustee Scott Smith, to approve 
Financial Reports for FY 22-23 as of December 31, 2022. Passed by 18 yeas, 1 
Abstain(Trustee Rena Gilligan). 

 
 

C. Policy Committee Report 
 

Chair Robert Riechel met with the Policy Committee on January 19, 2023, to review Draft District Policy 
4000 regarding using unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS) and reviewed San Mateo County Mosquito 
Vector Control Draft Internal Boardroom Policy. There was a written report provided in the Board Packet. 
The Committee recommends that the Board approve Policy 4000 regarding Unmanned Aerial Systems. 
The Committee recommends that the board provide feedback at the February meeting and take formal 
action on the internal policy. 



 
 

4 
 

 
Public Comment: 
Board Comment: 
There were several questions from Board members on using unmanned Aerial Systems. General 
Counsel Barnhill explained that the policy intends to promote responsible UAS use by District staff 
and publicly address privacy concerns. General Counsel Barnhill clarified the concerns regarding 
the Internal Boardroom Policy. She explained that the internal policy balances the conduct of the 
Boardroom and the safety of Board members, staff, and the public, given the small size of the 
District’s Boardroom and the requirements of the Brown Act. 

 
C.1 ACTION: MOTION by Trustee Robert Riechel, second by Trustee Mason Brutschy to 

approve District Policy 4000 Use of Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS) Passed by 18 yeas, 1 no 
(Trustee Ed Degliantoni).  

 
C.2 ACTION: MOTION by Trustee Scott Smith, second by Trustee Donna Rutherford, to 

approve the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District Internal Boardroom Policy. 
Passed by 16 yeas, 3 noes (Trustees Baluom, Williams, and Degliantoni). 

 
D. Inactive Committees 

 
President Martin would like the met with the Chairs of these Committees at the end of the month to discuss 
their direction. District Manager Weber will arrange to schedule. 

 
7. STAFF REPORTS 

 

A. Laboratory Director Angie Nakano provided a written report in Board Packet. She reported 
the continuance of the Tick surveillance program. She reported an ant invasion in the 
Mosquito Laboratory from the heavy rains. Laboratory Director Nakano said seeing trustees 
at the MVCAC Conference was good. 

B.  Public Health Education and Outreach Officer Rachel Curtis -Robles provided a written 
report in the Board Packet. She expressed being busy scheduling 80 classroom 
presentations in San Mateo County Schools. Educating youth about the disease risks from 
mosquitos and other vectors and the steps they can take to keep themselves and their 
families safe is a great way to raise public awareness of these issues.  

C. Information & Technology Director Matthew Nienhuis provided a written report in the 
Board Packet. He highlighted in his report Security awareness regarding QR codes. QR 
codes store information in various ways. Everyone must be mindful that the device can be 
used to get personal information and be aware of the risks. 

D. Special Presentation: Operations Director Casey Stevenson provided a written report in 
the Board Packet. He provided a PowerPoint presentation on the District Operations and 
the Mapvision database. OD Stevenson offered detailed information on the Mapvision 
database and the need to upgrade the services with Leading Edge. This technology is a 



 
 

5 
 

valuable tool for the District, allowing for efficient and effective public service. 
 

Public Comment on Agenda Item 7. A, B, C, D, and D 1. None                
Board Comment: 

           Many Board members complimented Casey Stevenson on the great presentation. Others 
wanted to know if there were enough technicians to use the technology. Also, there was a concern 
about the upgrade cost for Mapvision. Staff addressed these comments by providing additional 
information.  
 

ACTION:  Motion by Trustee Ray Williams, second by Trustee Carolyn Parker, to approve the 
contract with Leading Edge for Mapvision District database services in the amount of $110,000 
and $25,000 for annual licensing Passed by 19 yeas, 0 noes. 

 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
District Manager Brian Weber provided a written report in the Board Packet. DM Weber is pleased to 
report that the District is no longer paying for the leased property and is using the purchased property 
while architectural plans unfold. He also discussed future Board meetings, the Brown Act update, and 
how to comply with AB 2449. 

. 
Public Comment: None: 
Board Comment: None 

 
 

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Trustees Yoshida, Collins, Mason, Gilligan, Walsh, and Martin shared their experience at the 
MVCAC Conference. They all learned much about the industry/operations/science, enjoyed the 
conference, and look forward to the next conference. President Martin commended Angie 
Nakano on her presentation at the conference. 

 
10. Next Meeting is on March 8, 2023, at 6:00 P.M. on the 2nd Wednesday of the Month at the 

District’s boardroom in Burlingame. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT: 7:57 PM 
 



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Directors  Meeting 

March 8, 2023 
 

 

 
Agenda Item 5B 

CONSENT CALENDAR AGENDA 
 

SUBJECT: Pesticide Purchase Order 
 
 
  
 

BACKGROUND AND STATUS 
 

At the March Board meeting, District staff seek approval to purchase $56,907.99 in pesticides to 

control San Mateo County mosquito populations. The acquisition will ensure that district staff has 

the appropriate amount of control materials as Spring approaches. Also, some will be used for 

aerial treatments at Mills Field, Sharp Park, and Stanford properties. The products will be 

purchased through two different public health vendors, who are sole source distributors. See 

below for vendor and purchase totals. 

• Adapco - Metalarv S/PT in the amount of $33,849.57 

• Clarke - Natular G30 and Natular G in the amount of $23,058.42 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Recommend the Board approve the pesticide purchase from Adapco and Clarke in the amount of 
$56,907.99 

 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS AVAILABLE 

 
1. Adapco Purchase Order,  
2. Adapco quote  
3. Adapco Sole Source Letter for Metalarv S/PT  
4. Clarke Purchase Order 
5. Clarke Quote 
6. Clarke Sole Source letter for Natular Products 

 
 

 



Requested by:  Signature:

Request Date:

VENDOR: SHIP TO    San Mateo County Mosquito and

QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL

26 Bag  $             1,187.60  $           30,877.60 

  

  

  

  

  

  

SUBTOTAL 30,877.60$   

SALES TAX 2,971.97           

Shipping / Freight

Other

TOTAL 33,849.57$   

    Finance Director Approval                    Date                               Purchase Order Number

Pesticides for mosquito control.  Since we are ordering early we will receive 4 free bags.

FINANCE APPROVAL and PURCHASE ORDER #

Business Purpose for Requesting Purchase Order

 Metalarv S-PT 

Sanford Fl 32771 Burlingame, CA 94010
800-367-0659 Phone: (650) 344-8592

DEPARTMENT

OPERATIONS

DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT CODE / FUND

5111A1OP · Pesticides: Altosid, BVA, Larvicides - (GENERAL FUND)

550 Aero LN 1351 Rollins Road

Casey Stevenson

February 22, 2023

Adapco
ATTN: Dennis Candito Vector Control District

PURCHASE REQUISITION / 
PURCHASE ORDER

1351 Rollins Rd
Burlingame CA 94010
Phone (650) 344-8592    
Fax (650) 344-3843
www.smcmvcd.org

Instructions:

1. A Purchase Requisition Form will be required for all purchases over $1,000.

2. Per District Policy 6030 – Expense Authorization, informal bidding is required for requests 
between $1,000 and $7,500.  For requests over $7,500, formal bidding shall be required (will need 
an RFP).  Attach relevant supporting documentation to each request.

Department Manager Approval Date District Manager Approval Date

Updated 8/7/15



Date: February 21, 2023

Quotation #: 0221-23-1

Valid through: July 30, 2023 See note regaring EOP Free Goods Offer expiration date.

Prepared by: Dennis Candito

Azelis Agricultural & Environmental Solutions is pleased to provide the following quotation to:

SAN MATEO COUNTY MVCD

BURLINGAME CA

Comments or special instructions:

Prices quoted do not include sales tax.  Applicable sales tax will be added to invoice.                                 

Prices quoted include CDPR Pesticide Mil Tax assessment.

Item Description Qty Pkg Size Unit Price/ Unit Subtotal

METALARV S-PT 26 40 LB BG 1,187.60$   BG 30,877.60$     

METALARV S-PT  EOP OFFER* 2 40 LB BG N/C BG -$               

SUBTOTAL BEFORE TAX 28 40 LB BG 30,877.60$     

*METALARV S-PT  EOP Free Goods Offer requires miminum purchase of 12 bags to receive 2 additional bags free.

 METALARV S-PT EOP OFFER expires 3/24/23. But MetaLarv Price is firm thru 12/31/23.

Freight Prepaid Payment Terms Net 30 days.

Please visit our website at www.azelisaes-us.com to view Labels, request SDS, and get other product information.

Should you have any questions or immediate needs, please contact me at 877-875-6353.  

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you.

Best regards,

Dennis Candito  [electronic signature]

Dennis Candito 

Key Account Representative

Azelis Agricultural & Environmental Solutions 1324 Hearne Ave., Ste 120 (800) 367-0659

Email:  Dennis.Candito@azelis.com Shreveport, LA 71107 www.azelisaes-us.com

Direct: 877-875-6353

1 of 1 2/21/2023

mailto:DCandito@myadapco.com
mailto:DCandito@myadapco.com
http://www.azelisaes-us.com/


January 5, 2023 

  ATTN: Jason Trumbetta, ADAPCO LLC 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This letter is to advise you that Valent BioSciences, LLC is the sole manufacturer and 
registrant of the trademarked product brands VectoBac® (Bacillus thuringiensis subsp. 
israelenis strain AM65-52), VectoLex® (Bacillus sphaericus 2362 strain ABTS-1743), 
VectoMax® (Bacillus thuringiensis subsp. israelenis strain AM65-52 + Bacillus sphaericus 
2362 strain ABTS-1743), Bactimos® (Bacillus thuringiensis subsp. israelenis strain AM65-
52), MetaLarv® and VectoPrime®. This includes the formulations VectoBac G, VectoBac 
GS, VectoBac GR, VectoBac 12AS, VectoBac WDG; VectoLex FG, VectoLex WDG, 
VectoLex WSP; VectoMax FG and VectoMax WSP; Bactimos PT, Bactimos WG; MetaLarv 
S-PT, MetaLarv XRP; and VectoPrime FG. 

Also, be advised that ADAPCO, LLC is Valent BioSciences LLC's sole authorized 
distributor for VectoBac®, VectoLex®, VectoMax®, Bactimos®, VectoPrime® and 
MetaLarv® products in the United States, Cayman Islands and Puerto Rico. 

Should you have any questions regarding this information, feel free to contact at me. 

Regards, 

Drew Hunter 

Drew Hunter | Manager, National Sales – Public Health 

1910 Innovation Way | Libertyville, Illinois 60048 
Phone: 503-983-6508 
drew.hunter@valentbiosciences.com 
www.valentbiosciences.com 

mailto:David.Schumacher@valentbiosciences.com
http://www.valentbiosciences.com/


Requested by:  Signature:

Request Date:

VENDOR: SHIP TO    San Mateo County Mosquito and

QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL

25 Bag  $                775.20  $           19,380.00 

5 bag  $                331.74  $             1,658.70 

  

  

  

  

  

SUBTOTAL 21,038.70$   

SALES TAX 2,019.72           

Shipping / Freight

Other

TOTAL 23,058.42$   

    Finance Director Approval                    Date                               Purchase Order Number

Pesticides for mosquito contro.l Unit price for G30 is normally $816 per bag and Natular G is normally 
$349.20 but since we are ordering early we get a discounted rarte as shown above.

FINANCE APPROVAL and PURCHASE ORDER #

Business Purpose for Requesting Purchase Order

 Natular G30 

 Natular G 

St. Charles, Illinois Burlingame, CA 94010
650-894-2000 Phone: (650) 344-8592

DEPARTMENT

OPERATIONS

DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT CODE / FUND

5111A1OP · Pesticides: Altosid, BVA, Larvicides - (GENERAL FUND)

675 Sidwell Ct. 1351 Rollins Road

Casey Stevenson

February 22, 2023

Clarke
ATTN: Nancy Voorhees Vector Control District

PURCHASE REQUISITION / 
PURCHASE ORDER

1351 Rollins Rd
Burlingame CA 94010
Phone (650) 344-8592    
Fax (650) 344-3843
www.smcmvcd.org

Instructions:

1. A Purchase Requisition Form will be required for all purchases over $1,000.

2. Per District Policy 6030 – Expense Authorization, informal bidding is required for requests 
between $1,000 and $7,500.  For requests over $7,500, formal bidding shall be required (will need 
an RFP).  Attach relevant supporting documentation to each request.

Department Manager Approval Date District Manager Approval Date

Updated 8/7/15



Page:
1(1)

Valid toWritten byQuotation # Quote Date Salesperson

Delivery Method Terms

Item # Item Description Qty Ordered Unit Price Extended Price

675 Sidwell Ct

St Charles, IL 60174

U.S.A.

www.clarke.com

TOLL-FREE:  800-323-5727

PH:  630-894-2000

FAX:  630-443-3070

EMAIL:customercare@clarke.com

* For your convenience we also accept Visa and MasterCard

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate is Emailed to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to: 630-672-7439

650-344-3843    
6503448592 X21  

QUOTATION

San Mateo County MVCD (002486)B

I

L

L

T

O

S

H

I

P

T

O

Brian Weber

6503448592 X21  
650-344-3843    

* A 15% restocking fee plus freight costs may be assessed to any returned items.

 Items must be returned within 120 days of shipment and in an acceptable condition.

Brian Weber
1351 Rollins Rd

Burlingame, CA 94010-2409

03/31/23Angie Gaul0002029993 02/20/23

United Parcel Post

Nancy Voorhees

1351 Rollins Rd

Burlingame, CA 94010-2409

San Mateo County MVCD

Net 30 Days

11820             25             816.0000NATULAR G30 GRANULE 40lb BAG            19,380.00bag bag/

** Extended Price reflects a discount of:             1,020.00

US EPA Current Label
11814              5             349.2000NATULAR G 40lb BAG             1,658.70bag bag/

** Extended Price reflects a discount of:                87.30

US EPA Current Label

2,019.72Tax:

23,058.42Order Total

23,058.42Total



---Internal Use--- 

Corteva Agrisciences 
Agriculture Division of DowDuPont 
9330 Zionsville Road  Indianapolis, IN 46268  USA   Tel 317 337 4337   www.corteva.com 

December 8, 2022 

To whom it may concern, 

Please allow this letter to confirm that Corteva has granted Clarke Mosquito Control Products, Inc. 

exclusive rights to market its active ingredient spinosad for mosquito larval control products in the US 

territories, Caribbean and Cayman Islands for 2022.  Corteva understands that spinosad is utilized in 

Clarke’s Natular G, Natular G30, Natular G30 WSP, Natular T30, Natular XRT, Natular 2EC, Natular SC, 

and Natular DT products. 

Please let me know if you need further details. 

Yours sincerely, 

Lisa Bostock 

Global Business Development Leader 

Corteva Agrisciences 

lisa.bostock@corteva.com 

317-670-4408 



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Agenda Item 6A 

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 

SUBJECT: Finance Committee Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
 

Finance Committee members attended a meeting on February 27, 2023. Attendees included 
Committee Chair Mason Brutschy, Robert Riechel,  Kati Martin, Ray Williams, and 
Carolyn Parker. Staff attending included District Manager Brian Weber, Finance Director 
Richard Arrow, Information Services Director Matthew Nienhuis, and Operations Director 
Casey Stevenson. Guest presenter included Ryan Clausnitzer, General Manager of Alameda 
County Mosquito Control District and member of the Board of Directors of CalCLASS. 

1.  Reviewed the Financial Report for FY 22-23 as of  January 31,  2023.  Highlights were 
discussed with the committee by Finance Director Richard Arrow.  The Finance Committee 
recommended approval of these reports to be submitted to the Board of Trustees for 
consideration at their meeting on March 8, 2023.   

2. Finance Director Richard Arrow led a discussion of a potential addition of depositories for a 
portion of District funds. Ryan Clausnitzer, General Manager of Alameda County Mosquito  
Control District and member of Board of Directors of CalCLASS also gave his perspective of 
the benefitsof the CalCLASS organization. The California Special Districts Association 
sponsors the CalCLASS joint powers authority. Committee members, by unanimous vote, 
recommend that the District Board proceed in implementing an alternative depository for 
District funds with CalCLASS by filling out their application and when approved, make an 
initial deposit of $200,000. 

3.  District Manager Brian Weber discussed the pending agreement with SCI Consulting Group.  
The contract provides required services to enable the District to apply District special taxes 
and benefit assessments in connection with funding District operations for the fiscal years FY 
23-24 through FY 25-26.  The cost of this agreement shall be  $ 24,210 per year and may be 
cancelled at any time.  The Finance Committee is recommending that the District Board of 
Trustees direct the District Manager to execute this agreement. 

4.  The Finance Committee acknowledged a request by staff to recommend the approval of a 
pesticide purchase from Adepco and Clarke in the amount of $56,907.00.  Funds are available 
in the current year budget.  Finance Committee is recommending that this request be placed on 
the consent agenda of the upcoming Board of Trustee meeting of March 8, 2023. 



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

2 | P a g e  
 

5.  There was also a brief discussion of the continuation of remote meetings by committees of the 
Board.  District Manager Weber explained after extensive discussion with District Counsel, 
that remote meetings were legally acceptable. 

  

 



Item 6B 

Monthly Financial Report 
 Month Ending January 31, 2023 

Staff Recommendation: Motion to recommend approval of the January 31, 2023, Financial Report. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance 

Total revenues received from July 1 through January 31, 2023 (YTD) were $ 4.2 million; total expenditures 
YTD were $ 3.5 million, and the change in fund balance was $765.0 thousand.  The District had 
 $ 9.1 million in cash available in County Treasury. 

Budget Variances 

Revenues 

Actual revenues received through January 31, 2023, were over budget by $ 580,995 resulting from the 
receipt of a portion of excess ERAF in August 2022 ($ 574,500),  as well as timing differences of other revenue 
sources. 

General Capital Total
Fund Fund Funds 

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2022: 8,001,587$        749,944$     8,751,531$        

Revenues/Resources 4,218,918$        7,044$        4,225,962$        
Due To (From) Funds (276,044)$         276,044$     -$  
Expenditures 3,269,317$        191,613$     3,460,930$        
Change in Fund Balance 673,557            91,475        765,032$          
* Ending Fund Balance 8,675,143$        841,419$     9,516,563$        

* Components of Fund Balance:
Nonspendable (Inventory) 143,930.00$      -$            143,930.00$      
Assigned (Capital Improvements) - 841,419 841,419            
Public Health Emergency Fund 800,000            - 800,000 
Natural Disaster Emergency Fund 650,000            - 650,000 
Real Property Acquisiton Fund 1,134,670 - 1,134,670
Debt Service Repayment Fund 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Unrestricted Fund Balance 4,946,543 - 4,946,543
Total 8,675,143$        841,419$     9,516,563$        



 

Expenditures 

Expenditures through January 31, 2023, were under budget by $ 591,169 primarily due to the timing of 
expenditures contained in the table below:   

 

Budget Category
Over/  
Under Variance

% of YTD 
Budget Explanation

Salaries  & Wages Under $35,433 97.9%
New employees  costs  under budgeted 
pos i tions .

Employee Benefi ts Over $51,065 108.8% Timing of budgeted employee benefi ts

Adminis tration Under $92,858 70.6%
Timing of HR Consul ting, Engineering, Lega l  
Services , and audit expenditures

Computer Hardware & Software Under $20,682 54.8%
Timing of consul ting, hardware, and Map 
Vis ion l i cens ing expenditures

Operations Under $48,210 68.5% Timing of pesticide expenditures

Laboratory Under $18,474 63.4% Timing of Laboratory expenditures

Public Outreach Under $30,006 59.1%
Timing of media and promotion 
expenditures

Capital Improvements Under $357,557 34.9% Timing of building improvement exp.  

 
The Board’s budget level of control is at the category level, for example Salaries, Benefits, Admin., 
Operations, etc. The above table provides explanations for variances over $15,000.  

Questions 

Please direct all inquiries related to this financial reporting package to the District Manager, Brian Weber, 
before the board meeting to allow for adequate research.  He can be reached at the District office at 
(650) 344-8592 or via email at bweber@smcmvcd.org. 
 
Approval 

This month’s financial statements are fairly presented. The District Manager and Finance Director approved 
all disbursements and the monthly bank reconciliation. A Board Officer and the District Manager signed all 
checks.  
 

 

mailto:bweber@smcmvcd.org


 

 

Attachments: 

1. Statement of Financial Position/Balance Sheet 
 

2. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance 
 

3. Budget Variance Reports 

Month 
YTD 
YTD compared with adopted budget 
 

4. Accounts Receivable Aging Summary 

On the January 2023 summary, accounts receivable outstanding greater than 90 days total is  
$17,242 consisting of amounts due from the California Invasive Plant Council.  Updated receivables 
as of February 21, 2023 (over 90 days) is $ 0.  Staff is presently contacting agencies to expedite 
collection. 
 

5. Cash Activity & Reconciliation to County 

The District’s accounting system is fully reconciled with the County statement. 
 

6. Payroll Disbursement  

All payroll disbursements were made to employees and trustees for their monthly stipends. All 
employees were paid per District salary and wage schedule and longevity policies. 
 

7. Check Detail  

This month, the District wrote General Fund checks numbers from 22388 to 22447.  Last month’s 
check number ended at 22387.  All checks written were to vendors on account, retired employees, or 
reimbursements to current employees, per District policy.  In January 2023, 60 checks written from 
the General Fund totaled $ 157,138.84.  In addition, the District wrote 2 checks from the Capital Fund 
totaling $ 100,009.59 (check numbers 1098-1099). 
 

8. Purchase Card Report and Bank Statement  

All card purchases for the month were from commercial vendors and met the District purchase card 
policy.  A copy of the purchase card bank statement is attached.  Also, descriptions of all purchases 
from Amazon are included in the attached detailed purchase card transactions report.      
   



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District
Balance Sheet
As of Jan 31, 2023 Total General Capital

Jan 31, 23 Fund Fund

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1010 · Cash-County Treasury-GF x2706 8,273,500     8,273,500       
1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 (49,465)         (49,465)          
1020 · Cash-County Treasury-CPF x2705 840,879        840,879          
1025 · Checking -Union Bank - CPF x6913 -                -                  
1016 · County Funds - FMV (259,384)       (259,924)        540                 
1030 · Petty Cash 400               400                 
1035 · PARS Pension Rate Stabilization 110,183        110,183          

Total Checking/Savings 8,916,114     8,074,695       841,419          
Accounts Receivable

1100 · Accounts Receivable 22,063          22,063            
1105 · Interest Receivable -                -                  -                  

Total Accounts Receivable 22,063          22,063            -                  
Other Current Assets

1220 · VCJPA-Member Contingency Fund 469,114        469,114          
1230 · Pesticide Inventory 176,476        176,476          

Total Other Current Assets 645,590        645,590          -                  
Total Current Assets 9,583,767     8,742,348       841,419          

TOTAL ASSETS 9,583,767     8,742,348       841,419          

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable 67,205          67,205            -                  

Total Accounts Payable 67,205          67,205            -                  
Credit Cards

1040 · US Bank Purchase Card -                -                  

Total Credit Cards -                -                  -                  
Other Current  Liabilities

2200 · Accrued Wages -                -                  
Total Other Current Liabilities -                -                  -                  

Total Current Liabilities 67,205          67,205            -                  

Total Liabilities 67,205          67,205            -                  
Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance, 7/1/2022 8,751,531     8,001,587       749,944          
Due To (From) Funds -                (276,044)        276,044          
Revenues Over Expenditures 765,032        949,601          (184,569)        

Ending Fund Balance * 9,516,563     8,675,143       841,419          

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 9,583,767     8,742,348       841,419          

* COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable (Inventory) 143,930      143,930       -               
Assigned (Capital Improvements) 841,419      -               841,419       
Public Health Emergency Fund 800,000      800,000       -               
Natural Disaster Emergency Fund 650,000      650,000       -               
Real Property Acquisiton Fund 1,134,670   1,134,670    -               
Debt Service Repayment Fund 1,000,000   1,000,000    -               
Unrestricted Fund Balance (Includes Working Capital) 4,946,543   4,946,543    -               
Total Fund Balance 9,516,563     8,675,143       841,419          

 Page 1 of 28



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures Budget vs. Actual
July 2022 through June 2023

Month of Report: Annual YTD Annual YTD YTD Monthly Monthly Monthly
Jan, 2023 Budget Actual Variance % Budget Variance % Budget Actual Variance %

GENERAL FUND:
Ordinary Revenues/Expenditures

Revenues
Total 4000 · PROGRAM REVENUES 2,452,750     1,460,908      (991,842)        59.6% 1,469,813    (8,905)           99.4% 225,052       224,347       (705)              99.7%
Total 4100 · PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 3,197,480     2,000,140      (1,197,340)     62.6% 1,959,976    40,164          102.0% 260,119       286,566       26,447          110.2%
Total 4200 · OTHER TAX REVENUES 841,578        706,733          (134,845)        84.0% 119,341       587,392       592.2% -                302,209       302,209       0.0%
Total 4300 · OTHER REVENUES 187,848        51,137            (136,711)        27.2% 95,837          (44,700)        53.4% 15,324          33,605          18,281          219.3%

Total Revenues 6,679,656     4,218,918      (2,460,738)     63.2% 3,644,967    573,951       115.7% 500,495       846,727       346,232       169.2%

Expenditures
Total 5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 3,031,167     1,622,793      1,408,374      53.5% 1,658,226    (35,433)        97.9% 232,640       220,900       (11,740)        95.0%
Total 5100 · EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 887,416        629,216          258,200          70.9% 578,151       51,065          108.8% 61,853          70,760          8,907            114.4%
Total 5200 · TRAINING - BOARD & STAFF 87,973          33,863            54,110            38.5% 44,548          (10,685)        76.0% 559               2,303            1,744            412.0%
Total 5300 · ADMINISTRATION 593,988        223,125          370,863          37.6% 315,983       (92,858)        70.6% 33,529          16,096          (17,433)        48.0%
Total 5400 · INSURANCE 143,254        138,306          4,948              96.5% 143,254       (4,948)           96.5% -                -                -                0.0%
Total 5450 · COMPUTER HARDWARE & SOFTWARE 70,365          25,040            45,325            35.6% 45,722          (20,682)        54.8% 3,036            4,769            1,733            157.1%
Total 5500 · FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 51,547          27,983            23,564            54.3% 30,067          (2,084)           93.1% 4,296            3,284            (1,012)           76.4%
Total 5550 · UTILITIES 77,617          38,393            39,224            49.5% 45,272          (6,879)           84.8% 6,469            5,350            (1,119)           82.7%
Total 5600 · FLEET MAINTENANCE 59,891          32,423            27,468            54.1% 34,936          (2,513)           92.8% 4,991            3,685            (1,306)           73.8%
Total 5700 · OPERATIONS 262,067        104,662          157,405          39.9% 152,872       (48,210)        68.5% 21,839          27,711          5,872            126.9%
Total 5800 · LABORATORY 85,668          32,029            53,639            37.4% 50,503          (18,474)        63.4% 7,033            2,899            (4,134)           41.2%
Total 5900 · PUBLIC OUTREACH 125,820        43,389            82,431            34.5% 73,395          (30,006)        59.1% 10,485          7,136            (3,349)           68.1%

Total 6500 · DEBT SERVICE 330,000        318,094          11,906            96.4% 330,000       11,906          96.4% -                -                -                0.0%

Total Expenditures 5,806,773     3,269,317      (2,537,456)     56.3% 3,502,929    (233,612)      93.3% 386,730       364,892       (21,838)        94.4%

General Fund Net Revenues Over Expenditures 872,883        949,601          76,718            142,038       807,563       113,765       481,836       368,071       

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND:
Total 6000 · CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REVENUE -                 7,044              (7,044)             0.0% -                7,044            0.0% -                4,248            4,248            0.0%
Total 6000 · CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS EXPENDITURES 2,007,554     191,613          1,815,941      9.5% 549,170       (357,557)      34.9% 4,166            3,615            (551)              86.8%

Capital Improvement Fund Net Revenue Over Expenditures (2,007,554)   (184,569)        1,822,985      (549,170)      364,601       (4,166)           634               4,800            



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District 01/31/2023

A/R Aging Summary
As of January 31, 2023

Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL
California Invasive Plant Council 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,241.81 17,241.81
City of Foster City 0.00 0.00 35.31 0.00 0.00 35.31
City of Pacifica Public Works Wastewater 78.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.08
City of San Francisco, Public Utilities 777.80 0.00 563.44 0.00 0.00 1,341.24
City of San Mateo, Wastewater Treatment 84.03 0.00 85.39 85.39 0.00 254.81
City of South San Francisco Water Quality 84.03 0.00 84.03 0.00 0.00 168.06
San Francisco Int'l Airport 1,237.21 0.00 886.88 0.00 0.00 2,124.09
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 78.08 0.00 78.08 0.00 0.00 156.16
Silicon Valley Clean Water 163.90 0.00 331.76 167.86 0.00 663.52

TOTAL 2,503.13 0.00 2,064.89 253.25 17,241.81 22,063.08

San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District 02/21/2023

A/R Aging Summary
As of February 21, 2023

Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL
City of Pacifica Public Works Wastewater 0.00 78.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.08
City of San Francisco, Public Utilities 0.00 777.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 777.80
City of San Mateo, Wastewater Treatment 0.00 84.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.03
City of South San Francisco Water Quality 0.00 84.03 84.03 0.00 0.00 168.06
San Francisco Int'l Airport 0.00 1,237.21 886.88 0.00 0.00 2,124.09
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 0.00 78.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.08
Silicon Valley Clean Water 0.00 163.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 163.90

TOTAL 0.00 2,503.13 970.91 0.00 0.00 3,474.04

 Page 11 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District GF-Jan
Cash Activity & Reconciliation to County Statement 2023
General Fund 

Beginning Cash per District as of Dec 31, 2022 7,716,484    

Reductions
Payroll Related (ADP) (198,070)    
Checks Written (157,139)    
Bank Fee (123)           

Total Reductions (355,332)      

Additions
Quarterly Interest 26,985       
Abatement Services 16,805       
Property Tax Revenue 286,566     
ERAF Rebate 302,209     
RDA/RPTTF -             
Special Benefit Assessment 173,699     
Special Mosquito Tax 48,145       
Misc Deposit 8,474         

Total Additions 862,883       

Ending Cash per District as of Jan 31, 2023 8,224,035    

Cash per County General Fund Statement 8,224,035    

Difference -                  

January 31, 2023

Page 12



San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District CPF-Jan
Cash Activity & Reconciliation to County Statement 2023
Capital Project Fund

Beginning Cash per District as of Dec 31, 2022 936,666       

Reductions
Checks Written (100,010)    
Bank Fee (26)             
Transfer-Out to General Fund -             

Total Reductions (100,036)      

Additions
Quarterly Interest 4,248         
Transfer-In from General Fund -             

Total Additions 4,248           

Ending Cash per District as of Jan 31, 2023 840,879       

Cash per County Capital Project Fund Statement 840,879       

Difference -               

January 31, 2023

Page 13



San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
ADP Payroll Disbursement
January 31, 2023

January 6, 2023 January 20, 2023 Footnotes:

Payroll ACH Disbursement (including Net Pay & Taxes )

Total Net Pay 70,249                        71,485                        
Federal W/H Tax 13,225                        13,340                        
Social Security Tax -                              186                                     A
Medicare 3,151                          3,194                          
CA W/H Tax 5,473                          5,493                          
CA SUI/DI 7,613                          3,999                          

Total 99,711                        97,698                        

ADP Process Fee PPE 12/03 & 12/17 241                             293                             
ADP Time & Attend Processing Chrg 127                             -                              

Total amount for the period 100,079                      97,991                        

Total amount for the month: 198,070                      

Footnotes:
A.  Social Security expenditure incurred for seasonal employees and Trustees stipends

Jan 
2023



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

 

22388 01/12/2023 Great-West Life & Annuity Co Group No. 98368 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -6,515.01

 

12312022 12/31/2022 Employee Deferred Comp PPE 12/31/2022 5185 · Actives - Deferred Compensation 6,515.01

TOTAL 6,515.01

 

22389 01/12/2023 San Mateo County Retirement Ass SM M.A.D. 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -21,732.41

 

12312022 12/31/2022 Employee Contribution Pay Period 12/18/2022-12/31/2022 5115 · Retirement - Employee Contribut 9,378.97

Employer Contribution Pay Period 12/18/2022-12/31/2022 5110 · Retirement - Employer Contribut 12,353.44

TOTAL 21,732.41

 

22390 01/12/2023 U.S. Bank PARS Account # 674602Agency Name: San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District P  1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -572.18

 

6746022400-P12-31-2 12/31/2022 Alternate Retirement System for Richard Arrow PPE 12/31/2022 5116 · Alternate Retire-Employee Contr 572.18

TOTAL 572.18

 

22391 01/12/2023 Charles P. Hansen Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Jan '23 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -553.03

 

01012023 01/01/2023 Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Jan '22 5160 · Retirees - HRA & Medical Reimb 553.03

TOTAL 553.03

 

22392 01/12/2023 Dennis J Jewell Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Jan '23 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -553.03

 

01012023 01/01/2023 Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Jan '23 5160 · Retirees - HRA & Medical Reimb 553.03

TOTAL 553.03

 

22393 01/12/2023 Angela Nakano Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/1/2023 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -259.00

 

MVCACperdiem-Jan2 01/12/2023 Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/1/2023 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 259.00

TOTAL 259.00

 

22394 01/12/2023 Arielle Crews Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/2/2023 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -333.00

 

MVCACperdiem-Jan2 01/12/2023 Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/2/2023 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 333.00

 Page 15 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

TOTAL 333.00

 

22395 01/12/2023 Brian Weber Per Diem @ MVCAC Conf 1/29/23-2/1/23 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -259.00

 

MVCACperdiem-Jan2 01/12/2023 Per Diem @ MVCAC Conf 1/29/23-2/1/23 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 259.00

TOTAL 259.00

 

22396 01/12/2023 Casey Stevenson Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/1/2023 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -259.00

 

MVCACConf-Jan2023 01/12/2023 Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/1/2023 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 259.00

TOTAL 259.00

 

22397 01/12/2023 Richard Arrow Per Diem @ CMTA-Public Funds Investmt 1/24-1/26/23 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -185.00

 

CMTAperdiem-Jan20 01/12/2023 Per Diem @ CMTA-Public Funds Investmt 1/24-1/26/23 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 185.00

TOTAL 185.00

 

22398 01/12/2023 Theresa Shelton Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/1/2023 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -259.00

 

MVCACperdiem-Jan2 01/12/2023 Per Diem @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29-2/1/2023 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 259.00

TOTAL 259.00

 

22399 01/12/2023 Aim To Please Janitorial Services Invoice #56 - Dec 2022 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,633.25

 

56 12/30/2022 1351 Rollins Janitorial Services-Dec 2022 5340 · Janitorial/Household Expense 1,200.00

1415 N Carolan Janitorial Services 5340 · Janitorial/Household Expense 325.00

1415 N Carolan Restroom Cleaning 5340 · Janitorial/Household Expense 108.25

TOTAL 1,633.25

 

22400 01/12/2023 Airgas Dry Ice 4317638 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -248.30

 

9133237671 12/20/2022 Dry Ice (200 lbs) 5820 · Dry Ice 248.30

TOTAL 248.30

 

22401 01/12/2023 Amazon Capital Services Account # ARX6UTA334C06 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -889.07

 Page 16 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

 

1V9T-L7NV-JVV4 12/31/2022 Office Supply 5335 · Office Expense 126.03

Headset 5460 · Computer Hardware 20.82

Misc shop tools for fleet repair & maint 5610 · Garage Tools 356.15

Boat & truck maintenance supplies 5620 · Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 151.27

Trailer monitor mounts 5630 · Ops Equipment & Repairs 53.69

Lab supplies 5825 · Lab Supplies 98.33

Incentives for survey responses 5920 · Promotion & Printing 82.78

TOTAL 889.07

 

22402 01/12/2023 American Fidelity Assurance Com Payor: 56840 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,966.62

 

2189754A 01/10/2023 Flexible Spending Account (Employee Contrib) 5170 · Actives - Other Benefits 1,966.62

TOTAL 1,966.62

 

22403 01/12/2023 Aquamatic Fire Protection, Inc. Invoice #2205371 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,900.00

 

2205371 01/08/2023 5-Year Fire Sprinkler System Inspection (PO#02706-1840) 5505 · Facility - Repairs & Maint 1,900.00

TOTAL 1,900.00

 

22404 01/12/2023 Brian Weber Reimb for PPE 12/16/22 Direct Dep Returned-A/C Closed 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -300.00

 

Pay Direct Dep Retue 01/12/2023 Reimb for PPE 12/16/22 Direct Dep Returned-A/C Closed 5010 · Permanent Employees 300.00

TOTAL 300.00

 

22405 01/12/2023 CA Society Municipal Officers 2023 CSMFO Membership for Richard Arrow 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -125.00

 

300010453-Richard 12/02/2022 2022 CSMFO Membership for Richard Arrow 5330 · Memberships & Subscriptions 125.00

TOTAL 125.00

 

22406 01/12/2023 California Assoc of Public Info Officials 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -305.00

 

17133 12/28/2022 Professional membership renewal thru 2/10/2024 5330 · Memberships & Subscriptions 275.00

17142 12/29/2022 Rachel webinar registration 1/11/2023 5910 · Media and Network 30.00

TOTAL 305.00

 Page 17 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

 

22407 01/12/2023 Cintas Corporation #464 Payer #15914933 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -543.00

 

15914933 Dec-2022 12/31/2022 Uniform Services 12/07/22 Inv #4139733701 5725 · Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 169.11

Uniform Services 12/14/22 Inv #4140434758 5725 · Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 125.05

Uniform Services 12/21/22 Inv #4141147059 5725 · Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 124.42

Uniform Services 12/28/22 Inv #4141624690 5725 · Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 124.42

TOTAL 543.00

 

22408 01/12/2023 City of Burlingame, Water 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -974.79

 

53-310176-Dec22 12/30/2022 Fireline 10/25/22-12/27/22 5565 · Water 12.00

53-310184-Dec22 12/30/2022 3/4 Inch 10/25/22-12/27/22 5565 · Water 172.27

53-485494-Dec22 Ca 12/30/2022 1 Inch meter 10/25/22-12/27/22-1415 N. Carolan Ave 5565 · Water 163.36

53-133346-Dec22 12/30/2022 1 1/2 Inch 10/25/22-12/27/22 5565 · Water 627.16

TOTAL 974.79

 

22409 01/12/2023 Colorprint Inv #32383 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -446.31

 

32383 12/21/2022 Door hangers-Property access notice (Qty 500) 5910 · Media and Network 446.31

TOTAL 446.31

 

22410 01/12/2023 Comcast A/C #8155200280283815 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -169.33

 

8155200280283815Ja 01/03/2023 Business Internet 01/08/23-02/07/23 (1351 Rollins) 5575 · Phone - Land Line-AT&T/Comcast 169.33

TOTAL 169.33

 

22411 01/12/2023 Eco Medical Inc. Invoice #16051 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -109.20

 

16051 12/19/2022 28 Gal. Bio-waste container pick-up - Dec 2022 5830 · Lab Biowaste Disposal 104.00

Temporary Fuel Charge 5% 5830 · Lab Biowaste Disposal 5.20

TOTAL 109.20

 

22412 01/12/2023 FDAC EBA 51 - SMCMVCD Billing Period Feb-2023 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -33,175.38

 

 Page 18 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

FDAC0223-SMCM 01/09/2023 Medical Insurance for Feb-2023 5125 · Actives - Medical Insurance 30,107.88

Dental Insurance 5135 · Actives - Dental Insurance 2,520.45

Vision 5145 · Actives - Vision Insurance 442.55

Hartford Group Life 5150 · Group Life Insurance 104.50

TOTAL 33,175.38

 

22413 01/12/2023 Flyers Energy, LLC Account 700895 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,206.83

 

CFS-3273302 12/31/2022 Fuels 12/16/2022-12/31/2022 5735 · Fuel 1,206.83

TOTAL 1,206.83

 

22414 01/12/2023 Heluna Health Inv 2011069; A/C #26001 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -350.00

 

2011069 01/06/2023 Chicken Sero Testing FY2022 (Qty: 35 x $10) 5810 · Sentinel Chicken Flocks/Supply 350.00

TOTAL 350.00

 

22415 01/12/2023 Home Depot A/C #6035-3225-3190-9392 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -96.43

 

6035322531909392D 12/21/2022 Lobby Christmas Tree 5335 · Office Expense 96.43

TOTAL 96.43

 

22416 01/12/2023 MidAmerica Admin & Retirement SCust ID: SANMA002 (Admin Fees Oct-Dec '22) 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -648.00

 

HRA-Admin-Oct-Dec2 12/31/2022 Admin Fees for Actives HRA  Oct-22 thru Dec-22 5130 · Actives - HRA Health Reimb Acct 528.00

Admin Fees for Retirees HRA  Oct-22 thru Dec-22 5160 · Retirees - HRA & Medical Reimb 120.00

TOTAL 648.00

 

22417 01/12/2023 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Customer #1275593 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -36.31

 

2581-448757 12/28/2022 Engine cleaner for Argo 5620 · Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 36.31

TOTAL 36.31

 

22418 01/12/2023 ODP Business Solutions, LLC A/C #36568593 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -114.80

 

24745984 12/26/2022 Office supplies 5335 · Office Expense 114.80

 Page 19 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

TOTAL 114.80

 

22419 01/12/2023 PG&E 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -3,115.04

 

5584709654-6 Dec22 12/27/2022 1351 Rollins Site 11/29/2022-12/27/2022 5560 · Gas & Electricity - PG&E 2,366.46

5594119880-0 Dec-22 12/27/2022 PGE Elec & Gas for 1415 N Carolan 11/29/22-12/27/2022 5560 · Gas & Electricity - PG&E 748.58

TOTAL 3,115.04

 

22420 01/12/2023 Quench USA, Inc. A/C #D322868 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -205.00

 

INV05069842 01/01/2023 Water Dispenser Rental - Jan 2023 5335 · Office Expense 205.00

TOTAL 205.00

 

22421 01/12/2023 Recology San Mateo County A/C #731001072 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -456.00

 

48220735 12/28/2022 Garbage Service - Dec 2022 5340 · Janitorial/Household Expense 456.00

TOTAL 456.00

 

22422 01/12/2023 San Mateo County Environmental Acct. No. AR0008131 San Mateo Cty Mosquito 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,238.00

 

375470 01/01/2023 Generates & Recycles Waste Oil/Solvent 5360 · Permits 1,014.00

Off-site Treatment Registr (1-199 LB/MO) 5360 · Permits 224.00

TOTAL 1,238.00

 

22423 01/12/2023 Spark Creative Design Inv #2700 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -400.00

 

2700 01/09/2023 Misc design and graphics for District services 5920 · Promotion & Printing 400.00

TOTAL 400.00

 

22424 01/12/2023 Streamline Invoice No: 112D6F75-0022 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -370.00

 

112D6F75-0023 01/01/2023 Streamline Web 1/1/2023-2/1/2023 5475 · Website Hosting / Microsoft 370.00

TOTAL 370.00

 

22425 01/12/2023 Compu-Data, Inc. 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -6,149.14

 Page 20 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

 

64108 12/14/2022 Barracuda 1-Yr Cloud Storage, Updates, Replacement  & Backups 5465 · Computer Software 6,009.14

64012 01/10/2023 Connected Richard with gotomypc (1hr) 5455 · IT Consulting - Compu-Data 140.00

TOTAL 6,149.14

 

22426 01/12/2023 Verizon A/C #271667168-00001 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -2,064.64

 

9923901002 12/26/2022 Services for period 11/27-12/26/22 (CalNet) 5580 · Phone - Mobile Devices-Verizon 1,637.65

Upgrade iPhone for Rachel 5580 · Phone - Mobile Devices-Verizon 426.99

TOTAL 2,064.64

 

22427 01/12/2023 U.S. Bank 4246-0445-5564-6391 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -5,315.96

 

12222022 12/22/2022 Credit Card Payment 1040 · US Bank Purchase Card 5,315.96

TOTAL 5,315.96

 

22428 01/25/2023 Great-West Life & Annuity Co Group No. 98368 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -6,515.01

 

01142023 01/14/2023 Employee Deferred Comp PPE 01/14/2023 5185 · Actives - Deferred Compensation 6,515.01

TOTAL 6,515.01

 

22429 01/25/2023 San Mateo County Retirement Ass SM M.A.D. 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -21,732.41

 

01142023 01/14/2023 Employee Contribution Pay Period 01/01/2023-01/14/2023 5115 · Retirement - Employee Contribut 9,378.97

Employer Contribution Pay Period 01/01/2023-01/14/2023 5110 · Retirement - Employer Contribut 12,353.44

TOTAL 21,732.41

 

22430 01/25/2023 U.S. Bank PARS Account # 674602Agency Name: San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District P  1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -572.18

 

6746022400-PP1-14- 01/14/2023 Alternate Retirement System for Richard Arrow PPE 01/14/2023 5116 · Alternate Retire-Employee Contr 572.18

TOTAL 572.18

 

22431 01/25/2023 Airgas Dry Ice 4317638 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -266.81

 

9133610141 01/04/2023 Dry Ice (200 lbs) 5820 · Dry Ice 266.81

 Page 21 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

TOTAL 266.81

 

22432 01/25/2023 Alert Door Service, Inc. Inv #101415 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -350.00

 

101415 01/09/2023 Service noisy motor/chain on front gate at 1315 Rollins Rd. 5505 · Facility - Repairs & Maint 350.00

TOTAL 350.00

 

22433 01/25/2023 American Fidelity Assurance Payor: 56840 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -457.98

 

D549295 01/20/2023 Life/Acc/Cancer EE Insurance for Jan-2023 5170 · Actives - Other Benefits 457.98

TOTAL 457.98

 

22434 01/25/2023 Bay Alarm 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -2,001.00

 

20261346 01/15/2023 Fire Alarm Monitoring 02/01/2023-04/30/2023 (1351 Rollins Rd) 5385 · Security and fire alarm 445.20

Sprinkler Inspection Services 02/01/2023-04/30/2023 5385 · Security and fire alarm 160.80

20260031 01/15/2023 Access Control System 02/01/23-04/30/23 (1351 Rollins Rd) 5385 · Security and fire alarm 855.00

20263218 01/15/2023 Security Alarm Monitoring 02/01/2023-04/30/2023 (1415 N Carolan Ave) 5385 · Security and fire alarm 540.00

TOTAL 2,001.00

 

22435 01/25/2023 Clarke Mosquito Control Products  Customer # 002486 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -21,389.86

 

5103106 01/04/2023 Natular G30 Granule 40lb bg (5Bags) (P.O. #02706-1813) 5705 · Pesticides 3,947.80

Natular 2EC 2.5 Gal (1ea) 5705 · Pesticides 3,938.73

Natular XRT Tablet (10cs) 5705 · Pesticides 11,790.78

Coco Bear 55 Gal (1drm) 5705 · Pesticides 1,712.55

TOTAL 21,389.86

 

22436 01/25/2023 Fusion, LLC Customer No. 3789973 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -534.83

 

9631509 01/17/2023 Phone System Feb-2023 5570 · Phone - VOIP - Fusion/MegaPath 534.83

TOTAL 534.83

 

22437 01/25/2023 Grainger 809934680 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -580.69

 

 Page 22 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

7106950483 01/05/2023 Building repair & maint supply 5505 · Facility - Repairs & Maint 149.58

Shop equipment 5610 · Garage Tools 147.08

Spryaer fittings 5620 · Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 147.28

Ops equipment 5630 · Ops Equipment & Repairs 101.19

Fish room supply 5730 · Mosquito Fish 35.56

TOTAL 580.69

 

22438 01/25/2023 Jarvis Fay LLP Invoice 17230 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,311.00

 

17230 12/31/2022 Board Matters (4.6 hrs) - Legal Services thru Dec-2022 5350 · Legal Services 1,311.00

TOTAL 1,311.00

 

22439 01/25/2023 Lampire Biological Laboratories, I A/C # SANMAT 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -316.00

 

458175 01/03/2023 Chicken Blood (PO# 02076-1779) 5815 · Mosquito Blood 316.00

TOTAL 316.00

 

22440 01/25/2023 Pacific 4 Invoice 00167194 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,678.89

 

00167194 01/17/2023 Nitrile gloves for pesticide handling (60 boxes) 5720 · Safety Equipment 1,678.89

TOTAL 1,678.89

 

22441 01/25/2023 Public Agency Retirement Services Customer #SAN400 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -312.12

 

52266 01/10/2023 PARS Alternate Retirement System Fees PE 11/30/2022 5325 · HR & Finance Consultant 312.12

TOTAL 312.12

 

22442 01/25/2023 Purchase Power 8000-9000-0074-1201 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -208.99

 

17662438-Jan-23 01/15/2023 Postage refill and transaction fee 5380 · Copier and postage 208.99

TOTAL 208.99

 

22443 01/25/2023 Richard Arrow Per Diem @ Finance Conf in Sacramento 1/30-2/2/23 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -241.50

 

CONFperdiem-1/30-2 01/25/2023 Per Diem @ Finance Conf in Sacramento 1/30-2/2/23 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 241.50

 Page 23 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

TOTAL 241.50

 

22444 01/25/2023 RMT Landscape Contractors, Inc. Customer #M332 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -790.00

 

20230134 01/10/2023 Landscape Maintenance Jan-2023 (1351 Rollins Rd) 5505 · Facility - Repairs & Maint 495.00

Landscape Maintenance (1415 N Carolan Ave) 5505 · Facility - Repairs & Maint 295.00

TOTAL 790.00

 

22445 01/25/2023 Comcast A/C #8155200280658818 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -179.28

 

8155200280658818Ja 01/15/2023 Business Internet 01/20/23-02/19/23 (1415 N Carolan) 5575 · Phone - Land Line-AT&T/Comcast 179.28

TOTAL 179.28

 

22446 01/25/2023 Colorprint 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -582.52

 

32523 01/17/2023 Tick Removal Cards (Qty 1,000) 5920 · Promotion & Printing 163.48

32526 01/17/2023 Tick Rack Cards (Qty 500ea of 2 versions) 5920 · Promotion & Printing 251.18

32544 01/19/2023 Business cards for Rachel, Evan, & Trustee Mason 5335 · Office Expense 167.86

TOTAL 582.52

 

22447 01/25/2023 Flyers Energy, LLC Account 700895 1015 · Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,086.71

 

CFS-3292927 01/15/2023 Fuels 01/01/2023-01/15/2023 5735 · Fuel 1,086.71

TOTAL 1,086.71

CHECK TOTAL 157,138.84

Note: Previous month's check numbers were 22311-22387.  Current month's check numbers are 22388-22447 (60 checks).

 Page 24 of 28



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District CPF-Jan
Check Detail 2023
January 2023

Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount

 

1098 01/12/2023 Aetypic Invoice #AET-2022-K003 1025 · Checking -Union Bank -CPF x6913 -96,421.10

 

AET-2022-K003 12/08/2022 Professional Services thru 11/25/22: 1415 N. Carola   6010 · Building Improvements 96,421.10

TOTAL 96,421.10

 

1099 01/12/2023 Enterprise FM Trust Customer No. 458563 1025 · Checking -Union Bank -CPF x6913 -3,588.49

 

FBN4643926 01/05/2023 22NCN8-2018 NISS Frontier- Jan 2023 6030 · Vehicle Leases 298.49

22NCNB-2018 NISS Frontier 6030 · Vehicle Leases 298.49

22NCNF-2018 NISS Frontier 6030 · Vehicle Leases 33.70

22NCNJ-2018 NISS Frontier 6030 · Vehicle Leases 33.70

23CDWF-2020 Subaru Forester 6030 · Vehicle Leases 318.64

23LVXF-2019 NISS Frontier (Kim) 6030 · Vehicle Leases 405.59

23LW6S-2019 NISS Frontier (Lab) 6030 · Vehicle Leases 455.33

23MVV2-2020 NISS Frontier 6030 · Vehicle Leases 391.87

23MVW3-2020 NISS Frontier 6030 · Vehicle Leases 391.88

25QSHX-2022 FORD Explorer 6030 · Vehicle Leases 492.81

266LKM-2021 RAM 2500 6030 · Vehicle Leases 467.99

TOTAL 3,588.49

CHECK TOTAL 100,009.59

Note: Previous month's check number was 1097.  Current month's check numbers are 1098-1099 (2 checks). 

 Page 25 of 28



Jan
2023

Type Date Name Memo Split Amount

1040 · US Bank Purchase Card

1045 · US Bank Visa Brian x2315

Credit Card Charge 12/22/2022 Government Finance Officers AssCOA  Application Fee 5375 · Audit 1,265.00

Credit Card Charge 01/04/2023 MVCAC Banquet tkt for Trustee Ron Collin's wife Gayle-TB Reimb 5210 · Conferences / Workshops Board 90.00

Credit Card Charge 01/08/2023 Microsoft Online Email Services 5475 · Website Hosting / Microsoft 28.66

Credit Card Charge 01/19/2023 Lands End Business Outfitters Logo-embroidered clothing items for staff and trustees 5910 · Media and Network 753.99

Credit Card Charge 01/20/2023 Docusign Docusign subscriptions for 14 staff users 5465 · Computer Software 4,200.00

Total 1045 · US Bank Visa Brian x2315 6,337.65

1050 · US Bank Visa Admin x5992

Credit Card Charge 12/29/2022 Misc-Lab Joann Fabric - material for making tick flags 5805 · Disease Surveillance 60.13

Credit Card Charge 01/03/2023 Mosyle Business Mosyle business premium license 1-1-23 to 1-31-23 5465 · Computer Software 30.00

Credit Card Charge 01/10/2023 Rock Auto Fleet service parts for CB jeeps and new service truck 5620 · Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 953.47

Credit Card Charge 01/10/2023 Misc- Ops Torklift Central-front trailer hitch for Ram service truck 5630 · Ops Equipment & Repairs 413.99

Credit Card Charge 01/10/2023 Misc- Ops Qspray-pressure regulators for red Birchmeier backpk sprayers 5630 · Ops Equipment & Repairs 83.95

Credit Card Charge 01/11/2023 Argo Adventure Argo service parts for fleet and stock 5620 · Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 583.20

Credit Card Charge 01/11/2023 Alaska Air Round trip flight for Richard Arrow-financial conference 5215 · Conferences / Workshops Staff 242.80

Credit Card Charge 01/12/2023 Misc- Outreach RankPlus SEO-prof'nl assist with setting up google analytics 5910 · Media and Network 205.00

Credit Card Charge 01/13/2023 Misc- Outreach Capio-training about public communications from capio 5910 · Media and Network 30.00

Credit Card Charge 01/14/2023 Mann Lake Ltd. Replacement transport crate for chickens 5725 · Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 76.26

Credit Card Charge 01/17/2023 Life Technologies Corporation Lab supplies 5825 · Lab Supplies 648.41

Credit Card Charge 01/18/2023 USPS Postage stamps for mailings to school classrooms 5910 · Media and Network 62.10

Credit Card Charge 01/19/2023 PSI Testing Drone pilots license exam for Ryan 5220 · Staff Training 175.00

Credit Card Charge 01/19/2023 Lakeshore Learning Items to use in classroom outreach programs 5910 · Media and Network 91.01

Total 1050 · US Bank Visa Admin x5992 3,655.32

TOTAL 1040 · US Bank Purchase Card 9,992.97

San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District
Credit Card Transaction Detail by Account 

January 2023

 Page 26 of 28







San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6C 

  
SUBJECT: Consider having the District Manager enter into a three-year 

Levy Administration Services Agreement between the District 
and SCI Consulting Group in the amount of $24,210 annually 

              
 

DISCUSSION: 

Staff seeks to retain the services of SCI Consulting Group “SCI” related to the determination, 
levy, and collection of assessment revenues in the District’s North and West benefit assessment 
area and Special Tax revenues in the South and Bayside. SCI’s Assessment Engineer of Record 
will prepare an Engineer’s Report annually for the Assessment District. The Engineer’s Report 
will describe services and improvements, cost estimates, assessment methodology, assessment 
diagram, and the assessment roll. These services are also critical in the timely preparation of the 
District’s annual budget while ensuring compliance with applicable Prop 218 and Special Tax 
statutes.  A complete overview of the services provided by SCI can be viewed on page four of 
attachment 6C.1. 

Staff proposes entering into a three-year agreement with SCI for FY 2023-24 through FY 25-26. 
The Finance Committee unanimously recommended the SCI Agreement to the Board for 
approval at their February 27, 2023, meeting 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Recommend the Board authorizes the District Manager to enter into a three-year Levy 
Administration Services Agreement with SCI Consulting Group in the amount of $24,210 
annually 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. SCI Proposal for FY 23-24 through FY 25-26 
 



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 1 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

Levy Administration Services Agreement 

THIS AGREEMENT is made on ______________, 20___, between the San Mateo County Mosquito 

and Vector Control District, (“District”) and SCI Consulting Group (“Consultant” or “SCI”), a 

California Corporation, who agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Work (“Work”). Consultant shall perform the work and render the services 

described in the Scope of Work shown below (the “Work”). The Consultant shall provide 

all labor, equipment, material and supplies required or necessary to properly and 

competently perform the Work, and determine the method, details and means of doing 

the Work. 

2. Payment.   

a. In exchange for the Work, District shall pay to the Consultant a fee for completed 

phases of the Work. The total fee for the Work shall not exceed amounts set forth 

in the Fee Schedule shown below. There shall be no compensation for extra or 

additional work or services by the Consultant unless approved in advance in 

writing by District. The Consultant’s fee shall include all of the Consultant’s costs 

and expenses related to the Work.    

b. At the completion of each phase of the Work, the Consultant shall submit to the 

District an invoice for the Work performed. If the Work is satisfactorily completed 

and the invoice is accurately computed, the District shall pay the invoice within 

30 days of its receipt.   

3. Term.  This Agreement shall take effect on the above date and shall continue in effect 

until completion of the Work.  

4. Insurance. 

a. Types & Limits. The Consultant, at its sole cost and expense, shall procure and 

maintain for the duration of this Agreement the following types and limits of 

insurance: 

Commercial General Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence  
 $4,000,000 aggregate 

Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per accident 
Workers' Compensation Statutory limits 
Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim 
Excess Liability (over General $1,000,000 per occurrence 
Liability & Auto Liability) & $1,000,000 aggregate 

b. Other Requirements. The general liability policy(ies) shall be endorsed to name 

the District, its officers and employees as additional insureds regarding liability 

arising out of the Work.   

c. Proof of Insurance.  Upon request, the Consultant shall provide to the District 

proof of insurance. 



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 2 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

5. Indemnification. The Consultant shall indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless the 

District, and its officers and employees from and against any and all liability, losses, 

claims, damages, expenses, demands, and costs (including, but not limited to, attorney, 

expert witness and consultant fees, and litigation costs) arising out of the Consultant’s 

performance of the Work and caused by willful misconduct of or by the Consultant or its 

employees, agents and subcontractors. 

6. Entire Agreement.  This writing represents the sole, final, complete, exclusive and 

integrated expression and statement of the terms of this contract between the parties 

concerning the Work, and supersedes all prior oral and/or written negotiations, 

representations or contracts.  This Agreement may be amended only by a subsequent 

written contract approved and executed by both parties. 

7. Independent Contractor. The Consultant’s relationship to the District is that of an 

independent contractor.   

8. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 

heirs, successors and assigns of the parties; however, the Consultant shall not 

subcontract, assign or transfer this Agreement or any part of it without the prior written 

consent of the District. 

9. No Waiver of Rights.  Any waiver at any time by either party of its rights as to a breach or 

default of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver as to any other breach or 

default.   

10. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is held to be void, invalid or unenforceable, 

then the remaining parts will nevertheless continue in full force and effect. 

11. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

12. Default. In the event that the Consultant defaults in the obligations of the Consultant 

under this Agreement, or the Consultant defaults in the performance of the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, the District may, at its option, declare this Agreement to be 

in default and, at any time thereafter, may do any one or more of the following: a) enforce 

performance of the Agreement by the Consultant; or b) terminate this Agreement. In the 

event that this Agreement is terminated, payment shall still be due for all Work performed 

by the Consultant through the date of the termination. 

13. Cancellation.  The District or the Consultant may cancel this Agreement without cause.  

The party desiring to cancel this Agreement shall notify the other party in writing. In the 

event that this Agreement is cancelled, payment shall still be due for all Work performed 

by the Consultant through the date of the notification of cancellation. 

14. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or construe this 

Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s 

fees, expert witness and consulting fees, and litigation costs. 



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 3 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

15. Notice.  Any notice, invoice or other communication that is required or permitted to be 

given under this Agreement shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by 

prepaid, first class U.S. mail or by commercial delivery service, addressed as follows: 

 
Public Agency: Consultant: 
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector 
Control District 
1351 Rollins Road 
Burlingame, CA  94010 

SCI Consulting Group 

4745 Mangels Boulevard 
Fairfield, CA  94534 
 

Any party may change its address by notifying the other party of the change in the manner 

provided below:  

 
  

  

  

   

 
  

  

  

  

 

  



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 4 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

Scope of Work 

This section outlines the engineering services and other responsibilities SCI would perform as the 

Engineer of Work and Assessment Levy Administrator for San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector 

Control District. 

DEFINITIONS 

District:   San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District, staff and 

Trustees/Directors. 

Assessment:  North and West San Mateo County Mosquito Abatement Assessment 

District 

Special Tax: Original Special Tax District (South and Bayside) 

SCI or Consultant:  SCI Consulting Group, and any and all employees and subcontractors. 

Administration:   Services related to the determination, levy and collection of assessment 

and tax revenues. 

 

I.) ASSESSMENT ENGINEERING AND BENEFIT ASSESSMENT LEVY ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION 

ASSESSMENT ENGINEERING AND ENGINEER’S REPORT 

As the Assessment Engineer of Record, SCI will annually prepare an Engineer’s Report for the 

Assessment District. The Engineer’s Report will include a description of services and 

improvements, costs estimates, assessment methodology, assessment diagram and the 

assessment roll. Each year SCI will carefully evaluate Proposition 218 developments that may have 

a bearing on the District’s Assessment District.  SCI will make recommendations for upgrades to 

improve the report’s compliance with Proposition 218.  SCI will review the proposed upgrades 

with the District, legal counsel and other parties, as necessary, and will incorporate their 

comments as appropriate.  Additionally, electronic levy rolls sorted by Assessor Parcel Number 

and Property Owner's Name will be prepared and submitted to the District. 

 

 

 



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 5 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

DETERMINATION OF FINAL LEVIES   

We calculate and confirm our clients’ assessments on a parcel-by-parcel basis for all properties 

within each assessment district. SCI has developed over 50 unique assessment validation queries 

that we run on each parcel. Furthermore, we acquire, compare and incorporate additional data 

and property information from the District and other real property vendors, Geographic 

Information System (GIS) mapping, title company information vendors and other sources.  This 

approach, while more time consuming than simply relying on Assessor property characteristics 

and previous levy amounts, has consistently proven to result in more accurate levies and higher 

overall special levy revenues.    

After the close of each fiscal year, SCI will determine the final levies based on the final lien roll 

data as of July 1. New or changed parcels will be identified and the final levies determined on a 

parcel-by-parcel basis.  We will research changes in property data, property usage, property 

valuations and any other changes from the previous year for parcels within the Assessment 

District and flag parcels that require property research to determine the appropriate benefit units. 

  

II.)  SPECIAL TAX ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION 

We will provide all services including:  
 

1. Review Measure F special tax resolutions and reporting for Proposition 13/218 
Compliance 

2. Perform annual data administration and calculation of special taxes 
3. Draft annual resolution and tax report  
4. Submit data and all required forms to the San Mateo County Auditor/Tax Collector 
5. Respond to Public Inquiries and Appeals 
6. Perform AB 2109 reporting and compliance 
7. Manage entire process and perform quality control  
8. Include our toll free phone number in property tax bills 

 

III.)  FOR BOTH THE BENEFIT ASSESSMENT AND THE SPECIAL TAX ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION 

PREPARATION OF RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICE 

SCI will prepare all required resolutions, notices and agenda reports as needed for the 

continuation of the assessments and taxes.  SCI will also assist with the publication of the notice 

for the continuation of the assessments and will attend the public hearing.    

 



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 6 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

QUALITY CONTROL  

We take great pride in our levy determination process and our stringent quality control and 

oversight to ensure the accuracy of the levies.  Each year for every special levy, we run validation 

queries on each parcel so any parcels that may require additional research can be identified, 

researched and determined. After the preliminary levies have been determined by the levy 

administrator, another levy administrator with SCI will perform a complete independent peer 

review and audit, including a parcel-by-parcel confirmation of the special levies. Any questions or 

issues uncovered are fully reviewed and resolved. These multiple stage reviews and quality 

assurance steps are a key element in SCI’s proven ability to ensure the highest level of accuracy 

and to maximize special levy revenues for our clients.  

LEVY SUBMITTAL AND CONFIRMATION 

Once the special levies have been internally approved, SCI will prepare the final levy roll for 

submittal to the County Auditor. SCI will also meet the Auditor’s levy roll submission requirements 

and will submit any necessary documents. Once the special levies are received and approved by 

the County, SCI will communicate the confirmed special levy amounts with the District.   

SCI can also develop and make available to the District an Internet based website or computer 

program that will allow District staff to quickly locate parcel data by owner name, parcel number, 

street address or other requested search criteria.   

TAXPAYER INQUIRIES AND APPEALS  

SCI will coordinate with the County Auditor for our taxpayer inquiry line at (800) 273-5167 to be 

placed aside the special levy amount on the County tax bill so taxpayers can directly contact SCI 

throughout the fiscal year with questions regarding the levy.  We have representatives who are 

fluent in English and Spanish. We will also provide the County Auditor with a summary and 

overview of each special levy for internal staff use.   

SCI will research and, if necessary, revise any levies which property owners consider to be based 

upon incorrect assessor information used to in the determination of the levy.  If any taxpayer 

appeals a special levy for their property, SCI will investigate the levy amount and basis for appeal 

and will make a recommendation and finding for the District. In the event that the District finds 

that a special levy should be adjusted, SCI will adjust the levy according to the District’s final 

determination.  For any taxpayer appeals, SCI will coordinate with the District and the taxpayer 

as appropriate. 

Our goal is to represent the District professionally and minimize any inconvenience to the 

inquiring taxpayer or the District. 

 



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 7 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

ASSESSMENT DEFENSE (BENEFIT ASSESSMENT)  

In the event of any question about the assessment or challenge, SCI would provide any necessary 

professional assessment engineering assistance with the justification and support of the 

assessments without additional charge. In comparison, we are not aware of any other firm which 

would similarly stand behind an assessment they created, let alone one that they did not create. 

 

  



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 8 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

Fee Schedule 

SCI shall be compensated for the performance of the Scope of Work as follows:  

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Annual Levy Administration (Assessment & Tax) 22,810$      22,810$      22,810$      

Payment due on August 10: 14,827$        14,827$        14,827$        

Balance due on January 31: 7,984$           7,984$           7,984$           

Manual Billing -$            -$            -$            

Incidental Costs  (Reimbursable based upon actual costs) 1,400$        1,400$        1,400$        

Maximum Total Contract Authorization 24,210$      24,210$      24,210$      
 

1. For the creation, mailing, collection and administration of hand-billed service charges (to 

public agencies and other owners that cannot be collected by the County Auditor) there 

will be no additional charge. 

2. The Scope of Work includes one meeting with the District. Any additional meetings shall 

be billed at the rate of $550 per person per meeting.  

3. In the event that the District elects to request optional, additive scope of work, SCI will 

work with the District to negotiate compensation for these additional tasks and execute 

an Addendum to the agreement for these additional services.  

4. Incidental costs incurred by SCI for the purchase of property data, maps, travel and other 

out-of-pocket expenses incurred in performing the Scope of Work shall be reimbursed at 

actual cost by the District with total cost not to exceed $1,400 per year, without prior 

authorization from the District. Note:   All costs associated with this proposal can be 

financed or refunded by assessment proceeds. 

The Fee Schedule shown above is valid as long as this agreement is executed within 90 days from 

the date this agreement was submitted to the District. 

  



Levy Administration Services Agreement   Page 9 of 9 
Between San Mateo County Mosquito Vectro Control District and 
SCI Consulting Group, December 2022 

Signature Page 

By signing below, we agree to the terms of this Levy Administration Services Agreement. 

 
Accepted: 
 
 

 
Accepted: 
 

                                                                             
Brian Weber 
District Manager 
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector 
Control District 
 

John W. Bliss 
President 
SCI Consulting Group 

 
 
                           
Date  

 
December 19, 2023 
                                                 
Date 

  



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6D  

SUBJECT: Alternate Depositories for District Reserve Funds 
              
 
BACKGROUND: 

The primary depository of District reserve funds is the San Mateo County Treasurer’s Office.  
Recently staff requested presentations from the California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities 
System (Cal CLASS) and Cal TRUST, a California public agency (Joint Powers Authority), after 
hearing about the benefits of their services through the California Special District Association 
(CSDA). Staff heard about the benefits of using their organizations to manage District reserve 
funds now invested within the San Mateo County Treasury. The CSDA, the League of California 
Cities, and the California State Association of Counties sponsor these investment groups.  

The current balances of these reserve funds are as follows: 

• Public Health Emergency Reserve: $    800,000 
• Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve: $   650,000 
• Real Property Acquisition Reserve: $ 1,134,670 
• Debt Service Repayment Reserve: $ 1,000,000 

Total:     $ 2,563,460 

DISCUSSION: 

After recent discussions with both organizations and direction from the SMCMVCD Finance 
Committee, the staff pursued moving some District reserves to one of the organizations 
mentioned above to maximize investment liquidity and returns. As previously reported, the 
District was required to reduce the carrying value on all investments on deposit with the San 
Mateo County Treasurer due to “mark to market” adjustments required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board.  This resulted in a significant “write-down” of District assets 
reportable in our Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 

Upon review of these alternative depositories, the District can minimize the impact of future 
losses (if they should re-recur) in the coming fiscal years. The staff has researched and reviewed 
both programs. Both are generally similar, but the staff wanted to look at the foundations of the 
offered portfolio, including contracts, performance information, and associated fees. In 
summary, these options look promising and may benefit our District greatly. Staff has invited 
Cal CLASS and Cal TRUST representatives to present briefly to the Finance Committee and 
answer any questions committee members may have. 

Staff has attached a table comparing the two financial providers with the Local Agency 
Investment Fund and the County of San Mateo investment pools to help stimulate further 
discussion and a recommendation from the Finance Committee. 



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

At the Finance Committee meeting of January 30, 2023, the Committee asked staff to report 
back next month on a recommendation concerning the placement of funds with either CalCLASS 
or CalTRUST and the amount of potential funds to be transferred. 

RECOMMENDATION 

After due consideration, the District Manager and Finance Director recommend that the Finance 
Committee forward a recommendation to the District Board of Trustees the following: 

 The Selection of CalCLASS as the alternative District depository.
 The sum of $200,000 as the initial transfer of District funds to the CalCLASS depository

represents the first installment of future possible transfers.

The rationale of the above recommendation is that CalCLASS appears to meet District needs 
more closely than CalTRUST because the governing Board contains board members that consist 
of local cities, counties, and special districts familiar with staff.  

Both alternative depositories have similar composition, rates of return, and ultimate investment 
options.  However, CalCLASS is the only alternative the California Special District’s 
Association sponsored. 

COMPARISON OF DISTRICT INVESTMENT VEHICLES

Cal CLASS Cal TRUST County Treasury
Local Agency Investment 

Fund

Organization Type Joint Powers Authority County State Treasurer
Years in Operations Less than 2 Years 167 Years 46
Entities Covered Counties, Cities, Districts County, Cities, Districts County, Cities, Districts
Numbers of Entites 34 NA 2,378
Financial Manager Public Trust Advisors, LLC County Treasurer State Treasurer
Value of Assets under Management $321.5 Million $7.8 Billion $199.6 Billion
Fee Charged For Services 0.15% NA 0.08%
Current Rates of Return (Prime Account) 4.21% 2.05% 2.17%
Effective Duration 0.33 Years 1.41 Years Up to 5 Yrs.
Other Investment Strategies Offered Yes No No
Guarantee of Principal No No No
Auditors Opinion Not Yet Available Clean Clean
CSDA Sponsored Yes

Joint Powers Authority 
20 Years

Counties, Cities, Districts 
145

Blackrock Inv. LLC
$2.8 Billion

0.14%
4.80%

0.40 Years
Yes
No

Clean
No No No



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. CalCLASS Organization Information 
2. CalCLASS Agreement 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Prime Fund Information Statement 

D   

June 17, 2022 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 2 

 

Introduction 

The purpose of this Information Statement for the California CLASS Prime Fund (Prime Fund) is to 

provide information to Participants (as defined herein) in connection with the purchase of Shares (as 

defined herein) in the Prime Fund.  This Information Statement for the Prime Fund describes certain 

provisions of the JPA Agreement (as defined herein) for the California CLASS and the Investment Policy 

for the Prime Fund.   Participants interested in the purchase of Shares in the Prime Fund should review 

the full terms of the JPA Agreement (located in the Document Center at www.californiaclass.com) and 

the Investment Policy for the Prime Fund described herein (located in the Document Center at 

www.californiaclass.com), each of which are incorporated herein by reference.  Capitalized terms not 

otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the JPA Agreement. 

The contents of this Information Statement should not be considered to be legal, tax or investment 

advice, and Participants should consult with their own counsel and advisers as to all matters concerning 

investment in the Prime Fund.  

California CLASS Prime Fund Summary 

The California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System, doing business as the California CLASS, is 

a California joint powers authority created pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California 

Government Code (commencing with Section 6500), known as the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Act) 

and the JPA Agreement referenced below.   

The Act provides that two or more public agencies (as defined herein, Public Agencies) that have the 

authority to invest funds in their treasuries may, by agreement, jointly exercise that common power 

and create a joint powers authority separate from such Public Agencies to exercise such common power 

and to act as administrator of the agreement. Under this authority, California CLASS was created 

pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA Agreement) dated as of June 6, 2022, between 

the Founding Participants (as defined in the JPA Agreement).  

The Act authorizes a joint powers authority, such as California CLASS, to issue shares of beneficial 

interest in authorized investments to participating Public Agencies (collectively referred to herein, as 

Participants and individually, as a Participant). See “Eligible Shareholders.”  The JPA Agreement sets 

forth the terms of the investment program known as California CLASS Investment Program, including 

the establishment of Funds in which Participants purchase shares of beneficial interest issued by 

California CLASS in authorized investments that are owned by California CLASS.  The Prime Fund is one 

of the initial Funds established by the California CLASS. 

The purpose of the California CLASS is to consolidate investment activities of the Participants and 

thereby reduce duplication, take advantage of economies of scale and perform governmental functions 

more efficiently through the California CLASS Investment Program. 

http://www.californiaclass.com/
http://www.californiaclass.com/


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 3 

 

As a joint powers authority, California CLASS provides a professionally managed pooled investment 

program for Participants.  See “Investment Advisor & Administrator.”  Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, 

California CLASS is governed by a Board of Trustees and is sponsored by the California Special Districts 

Association (CSDA) and the League of California Cities (Cal Cities and together with CSDA, the 

Sponsors).  See “Board of Trustees.”   

The Shares in the California CLASS Prime Fund have not been, and are not required to be, registered 

under any federal or state securities law. The California CLASS has not been, and is not required to be, 

registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.  Accordingly, the California CLASS 

and its Prime Fund are not subject to the provisions of that Act, including the protective rules relating 

to registered money market funds and other types of mutual funds.  

Prime Fund Investment Objectives 

 

California CLASS provides a professionally managed pooled investment program for Participants. The 

general objective of the Prime Fund is to generate additional investment income for the Participants 

while maintaining safety and liquidity. The Prime Fund is managed by the California CLASS to comply 

with the requirements of California law, specifically California Government Code Section 53601.  

The Prime Fund is managed by the California CLASS to offer a safe, convenient, and daily liquid 

investment option for Participants. As described below, the investment objectives of the Prime Fund are 

to preserve principal, provide daily liquidity, earn a competitive rate of return, and maintain a stable 

Net Asset Value (NAV) of $1.00. The Prime Fund accrues net income daily and pays net income on a pro 

rata basis monthly. 

The California CLASS has established that the Prime Fund will have a maximum dollar-weighted average 

maturity (WAM) of 60 days and a maximum weighted average life (WAL) of 120 days.  The Investment 

Policy created by the California CLASS for the Prime Fund establishes the objectives, policies and 

restrictions that are designed to facilitate the achievement of these objectives.   

The Investment Advisor for the Prime Fund will seek to maintain a ‘AAAm’ rating from S&P Global Ratings 

on the Prime Fund.  According to S&P Global Ratings, a fund rated ‘AAAm’ demonstrates extremely 

strong capacity to maintain principal stability and to limit exposure to principal losses due to credit risk. 

‘AAAm’ is the highest principal stability fund rating assigned by S&P Global Ratings. 

The investment objectives of the Prime Fund in order of priority are:  

Safety: The Prime Fund is managed to emphasize the preservation of principal while maintaining a 

stable NAV of $1.00.  

Liquidity: The Prime Fund is managed to provide daily liquidity to its Participants. See above for 

description of the maximum WAM and WAL for investments in the Prime Fund.  



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 4 

 

Competitive Returns: The Prime Fund is managed to generate competitive returns while providing 

daily liquidity and stability of principal.  

No assurances can be given that the investment objectives of the Prime Fund will be achieved.  

Transparency 

The California CLASS seeks to provide transparency to Participants in the Prime Fund by allowing 

Participants to readily obtain portfolio and account information.  The California CLASS will offer dedicated 

Participant support with an easy-to-use technology platform. Historical and current performance data, 

Net Asset Value, WAM, and WAL are published and available to Participants on the California CLASS 

website. Portfolio holdings are published quarterly and are available to Participants through the 

California CLASS Client Services team on an as-needed basis. Participant breakdowns and expense ratios 

are also published and available to Participants on the California CLASS website on a quarterly basis.  

Eligible Shareholders 

Any Public Agency that has the authority to invest funds in its treasury in statutorily permitted 

investments, including but not limited to Section 53601 of the California Government Code, and meets 

the requirements described in the next paragraph is eligible to become a Participant of the California 

CLASS Investment Program and is eligible to purchase shares in the Prime Fund.   

Each Participant must be a “Public Agency”, as that term is defined in Section 6509.7 of the Act, which, 

as of the date of this Information Statement, is defined as "the federal government or any federal 

department or agency, this state, another state or any state department or agency, a county, county 

board of education, county superintendent of schools, city, public corporation, public district, or regional 

transportation commission of the State of California or another state, a federally recognized Indian tribe, 

or any joint powers authority formed pursuant to this article by any of these agencies," and includes "a 

nonprofit corporation whose membership is confined to public agencies or public officials."  Each 

Participant must also be a political subdivision of a state, or an agency, authority, or instrumentality of 

the United States, a state of any political subdivision of a state. 

Prime Fund Eligible Investments 

Funds in the Prime Fund are required to be invested by the Investment Advisor in investments permitted 

by California law, specifically California Government Code Section 53601, and will be made in accordance 

with the Investment Policy established by the California CLASS for the Prime Fund. As required by 

California law, funds in the Prime Fund will be invested by the Investment Advisor in accordance with 

the prudent investor standard of the California Government Code.  



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 5 

 

While the Investment Policy established by the California CLASS for the Prime Fund covers the eligible 

investments and their maximum maturity, maximum portfolio allocation, maximum per issuer allocation 

and minimum credit quality in greater detail, the following types of investments are eligible for inclusion 

in the Prime Fund: 

• U.S. Government and agency obligations 

• Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Government and agency obligations 

• Registered warrants or treasury notes of the state of California 

• Bonds, notes, warrants, or other obligations of a local agency in the state of California 

• Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states 

• Bankers’ acceptances 

• Prime commercial paper and asset-backed commercial paper 

• Negotiable certificates of deposit 

• Corporate notes 

• Asset-backed securities 

• U.S. dollar denominated senior unsecured obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the 

International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation or Inter-

American Development Bank  

• Money market mutual funds 

The Investment Policy for the Prime Fund also contains certain investment restrictions on investments 

in the Prime Fund. 

As set forth in Section 53601 of the California Government Code, the legislative body of a local agency 

having moneys in a sinking fund or moneys in its treasury not required for the immediate needs of the 

local agency may invest any portion of the money that it deems wise or expedient in the investments 

described in Section 53601.  However, the California Government Code limits the amount of surplus 

money of a local agency that may be invested in such investments.  Each Participant is responsible for 

monitoring the aggregate amount of its investments in any of these types of investments to ensure its 

own compliance with the California Government Code.  None of the California CLASS, the Administrator, 

the Investment Advisor, the Custodian or any other agents of the California CLASS shall be responsible 

for such monitoring or compliance.   

Each Participant, by its investment in the Prime Fund, is certifying that it is legally authorized to make 

such investment.  Participants should consult with their legal counsel and/or advisors regarding the 

legality of investment funds in the Prime Fund. 

Shares; Interests of Participants  

The JPA Agreement provides that the beneficial interests of the Participants in the assets of the Prime 

Fund and the earnings thereon are divided into “Shares.”  “Shares” means the unit used to denominate 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 6 

 

and measure the respective pro rata beneficial interests of the Participants in a Fund within the California 

CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund.  As required by Section 6509.7 of the Act, each 

Share shall represent an equal proportionate interest in the Investment Property within a Fund, including 

the Prime Fund. The JPA Agreement provides that the number of Shares that may be used to measure 

and represent the proportionate allocation of beneficial interests among the Participants in a Fund, 

including the Prime Fund, is unlimited. All Shares in a Fund, including the Prime Fund, shall be of one 

class representing equal distribution, liquidation, and other rights. The beneficial interests measured by 

the Shares shall not entitle a Participant to preference, preemptive, appraisal, conversion, or exchange 

rights of any kind with respect to the California CLASS Investment Program or the Investment Property 

held in the applicable Fund, including the Prime Fund. Title to the Investment Property held in the 

applicable Fund, including the Prime Fund, of every description is vested in the California CLASS. The 

Participants shall have no interest in the Investment Property held in the applicable Fund, including the 

Prime Fund, other than the beneficial interests conferred hereby and measured by their Shares, and 

they shall have no right to call for any partition or division of any property, profits, rights, or interests 

of the California CLASS. 

In its discretion, the California CLASS may from time to time allocate Shares in addition to the then 

allocated Shares to such Participant for such amount and such type of consideration (including without 

limitation income from the investment of Investment Property held in the applicable Fund, including the 

Prime Fund) at such time(s) (including without limitation each Business Day in accordance with the 

maintenance of a constant net asset value per Shares as set forth in the JPA Agreement for constant 

net asset value Funds, such as the Prime Fund), and on such terms as the California CLASS may deem 

best. In connection with any allocation of Shares, the California CLASS may allocate fractional Shares. 

From time to time, the California CLASS may adjust the total number of Shares allocated without thereby 

changing the proportionate beneficial interests in the Investment Property held in the applicable Fund, 

including the Prime Fund. Reductions or increases in the number of allocated Shares may be made in 

order to maintain a constant net asset value per Share for constant net asset value Funds, such as the 

Prime Fund. Shares shall be allocated and redeemed as one hundredths (1/100ths) of a Share or any 

multiple thereof. 

Investment Risks  

Participants should specifically consider the following risks before deciding to purchase Shares of the 

Prime Fund. The following summary does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive of all risk factors.  

Interest Rate Risks  

The prices of the fixed-income securities in the Prime Fund will rise and fall in response to changes in 

the interest rates paid by similar securities. Generally, when interest rates rise, prices of fixed-income 

securities fall. However, market factors, such as demand for particular fixed-income securities, may 

cause the price of certain fixed-income securities to fall while the price of other securities rise or remain 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 7 

 

unchanged. Interest rate changes have a greater effect on the price of fixed-income securities with 

longer maturities. The Investment Advisor will seek to manage this risk by purchasing short-term 

securities.  

Credit Risks  

Credit risk is the possibility that an issuer of a fixed-income security held in the Prime Fund will default 

on the security by failing to pay interest or principal when due. If an issuer defaults, Participants in the 

Prime Fund will lose money. The Investment Advisor will seek to manage this risk by purchasing high-

quality securities as determined by one or more Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organizations 

and/or the Investment Advisor’s credit research team.  The Investment Policy for the Prime Fund 

contains a description of the minimum credit quality for each category of eligible investment in the Prime 

Fund. 

Stable Net Asset Value Risks  

Although the Prime Fund is managed to maintain a stable NAV of $1.00 per Share, there is no guarantee 

that it will be able to do so.  

Investment Not Insured or Guaranteed 

An investment in the Prime Fund is neither insured nor guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation or any other government agency. 

Board of Trustees  

Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, the management of California CLASS is governed by a Board of Trustees 

(Board). The Board supervises the California CLASS and its affairs and acts as the liaison between the 

Participants, the Custodian, the Administrator, the Investment Advisor and all service providers.  

CSDA and Cal Cities are sponsors of the California CLASS. The governing bodies of CSDA and Cal Cities 

each appoint two (2) Trustees who are either elected, appointed, or staff from a California CLASS 

Participant which is also a CSDA or Cal Cities member; or, staff from CSDA and Cal Cities. One seat on 

the Board shall be a Participant that is appointed by a majority vote of the Board. 

Initially, the number of Trustees shall be five (5) voting Trustees. The Board may expand the 

membership of the Board and set initial terms for each additional Trustee.  The Board approved the 

Investment Policy for the Prime Fund and may approve amendments to such Investment Policy from 

time to time.  Upon the Board’s approval of any amendment to the Investment Policy for the Prime 

Fund, the amended Investment Policy will be posted to the website of California CLASS. 

See www.californiaclass.com for a description of the current Trustees and officers of the California 

CLASS. 

http://www.californiaclass.com/


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 8 

 

Investment Advisor & Administrator 

Pursuant to an agreement with the California CLASS, Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust) serves as 

the Investment Advisor and Administrator for California CLASS Investment Program.  

As Investment Advisor, Public Trust provides investment services to the California CLASS, including the 

Prime Fund. Public Trust is an investment advisory firm headquartered in Denver, Colorado with offices 

in Los Angeles, California. Public Trust is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an 

investment advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.  

As Administrator, Public Trust services all Participant accounts in the California CLASS Investment 

Program, including all Participant accounts in the Prime Fund, determines and allocates income of the 

California CLASS Investment Program, provides certain written confirmation of the investment and 

withdrawal of funds by Participants, provides administrative personnel and facilities to the California 

CLASS, determines the NAV of the Prime Fund on a daily basis, and performs all related administrative 

services for California CLASS. At least quarterly, the Administrator provides the Board with a detailed 

evaluation of the performance of the California CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, 

based upon a number of factors. This evaluation includes a comparative analysis of the investment 

results of the California CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, in relation to industry 

standards such as the performance of comparable money market mutual funds and various indexes of 

money market securities.  

Custodian  

Pursuant to an agreement with the California CLASS, U.S. Bank, N.A. serves as Custodian for California 

CLASS Investment Program.  

As Custodian, U.S. Bank, N.A. acts as directed custodian for the California CLASS Investment Program, 

including the Prime Fund, and serves, in accordance with California law, as the depository in connection 

with the direct investment and withdrawal mechanisms of California CLASS Investment Program.  U.S. 

Bank, N.A. does not participate in the investment decision making process of the California CLASS 

Investment Program.  

The Custodian shall hold the Investment Property (excluding cash, which is not held by the Custodian), 

in its capacity as Custodian on behalf of California CLASS. Such Investment Property shall be custodial 

property of the Custodian and shall not be, or be deemed to be, an asset of the Custodian.  

Within fifteen (15) days after the end of each month, the Custodian shall send statements providing the 

closing balance in the Account at the end of such month and the transactions performed in the Account 

during such month to the Administrator and the California CLASS. 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 9 

 

Independent Auditors  

An independent certified public accounting firm, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, has been engaged to audit the 

annual financial statements of the California CLASS. The audit will contain statements of assets and 

liabilities, of operations, and of changes in net assets. The opinion of the independent certified public 

accountant on such financial statements is based on an examination of the books and records of 

California CLASS made in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The fiscal 

year of the California CLASS ends each March 31.   

How to Become a Participant  

See “Eligible Shareholder” to determine if you are eligible to be a Participant in the California CLASS 

Investment Program.  Any prospective Participants seeking to purchase Shares in the Prime Fund should 

review the JPA Agreement, this Information Statement for the Prime Fund, and the Investment Policy 

for the Prime Fund and then simply complete the California CLASS Registration Packet found in the 

document center of the California CLASS website(located in the Document Center at 

www.californiaclass.com).  Please email all completed forms to clientservices@californiaclass.com.   

There is no limit on the number of subaccounts that can be opened by a Participant. The Administrator 

will notify the prospective Participant of its approval of the Registration Forms and the account 

number(s) assigned. The Administrator reserves the right to reject any Registration in its discretion. 

Investment in the Prime Fund may be effectuated through the California CLASS Participant Portal. 

Secure online access will be available to Participants with respect to their accounts. Information with 

respect to the Prime Fund, including daily yield, up-to-date account information, and a transaction 

history will be available online. Confirmations of each contribution (purchase of Shares) and withdrawal 

(redemption of Shares) of funds will be available online to a Participant within one business day of the 

transaction.  

Purchase of Shares; Investments 

Payments by the Participant to the California CLASS, and the crediting of Shares resulting therefrom, 

are referred to herein as “contributions” for convenience. Participants may purchase Shares in the Prime 

Fund by Automated Clearing House (ACH) transfer or wire transfer from the Participant to the Custodian, 

as described in the Investment Procedures set forth below. The California CLASS does not charge a fee 

for receipt of wire contributions. However, a Participant’s bank may charge a fee for wiring funds. 

There is no maximum or minimum amount that must be invested in the Prime Fund nor is there any 

maximum or minimum limitations on the aggregate amount of the investment funds that any Participant 

may have invested at any one time with California CLASS. 

http://www.californiaclass.com/
mailto:clientservices@californiaclass.com


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 10 

 

Investment Procedures  

1. The Participant shall provide a recorded call or send a written notice to the Administrator indicating 

the amount to be invested in the Prime Fund and indicating which Account of the Prime Fund the 

investment is to be made. The Participant shall instruct its bank depository to wire or electronically 

transfer Investment Funds to the applicable Account at the Custodian for the purchase of investments 

to be held by the Custodian in such Account.  

2. The Administrator shall receive the notice described in (1) from the Participant.  

3. Investments received by the Custodian by 11:00 a.m. PT will be used to purchase Shares in the Prime 

Fund.  

4. If Investment Funds for which notification of investment has been given are not received by the end 

of the business day on which such notification is given, the Administrator shall deduct the value of such 

Investment Funds (including any earning income) from the Participant's balance if previously credited.  

5. The Participant is prohibited from requesting payments from amounts credited to its balance in the 

Prime Fund until such Investment Funds are received by the Custodian from the Participant.   

These Investment Procedures may be amended from time-to-time pursuant to the JPA Agreement 

provided, however, the Administrator will only change the times set forth above after consulting with 

the Custodian. 

Redemptions of Shares; Withdrawals; Transfers 

Payments by the California CLASS to Participants, and the reduction of Shares resulting therefrom, are 

referred to herein as “redemptions” for convenience. Redemptions of Shares from the Prime Fund may 

be made via ACH or wire transfer from the Custodian to the Participant, as described in the Payment 

Procedures set forth below. Shares in the Prime Fund will be redeemed in the amount of the withdrawal 

assuming a NAV of $1.00 per Share. 

There is no maximum or minimum amount that must be invested in the Prime Fund nor is there any 

maximum or minimum limitations on the aggregate amount of the investment funds that any Participant 

may have invested at any one time with California CLASS.  

Each Participant, by its investment in any Fund, including the Prime Fund, agrees that the California 

CLASS may temporarily suspend the right of redemption or postpone the date of payment for redeemed 

Shares for the whole or any part of any period: (i) during which trading in securities generally on the 

New York Stock Exchange or the American Stock Exchange or over-the-counter market shall have been 

suspended or minimum prices or maximum daily charges shall have been established on such exchange 

or market; (ii) if a general banking moratorium shall have been declared by Federal, state, or the State 

of New York or State of California authorities or during a suspension of payments by banks in the State 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 11 

 

of California; (iii) during which there shall have occurred any state of war or national emergency; (iv) 

during which any financial emergency or other crisis the effect of which on the financial markets of the 

United States is such as to make it impracticable (a) to dispose of the Investment Property because of 

the substantial losses that might be incurred or (b) to determine the Investment Property Value in 

accordance with the Valuation Procedures.  The Administrator shall determine, on behalf of California 

CLASS, when an event occurs that would entitle the Custodian to temporarily suspend or postpone a 

Participant’s right of redemption. Participants should refer to the JPA Agreement for additional detail.  

Transfers among the Prime Fund and another Fund within the California CLASS Investment Program 

will be considered a withdrawal from one Fund and a contribution to another subject to the 

requirements described in this Information Statement. 

Payment Procedures 

1. The Participant shall provide a recorded call or send a written notice to the Administrator indicating 

the amount requested to be paid (redeemed) and shall specify from which Account of the Prime Fund 

the payment is to be made.  

2. The Participant shall notify the Administrator in writing of the payee of the amount requested, 

which may be the Participant, and include any wire, electronic transfer, or other payment instructions. 

Such payee must be listed on the list of approved payees that has been provided by the Participant to 

the Administrator in advance of the payment.  

3. The Administrator shall receive the notice described in (1) and the information required in (2) from 

the Participant. Requests for redemptions from Accounts of the Prime Fund with pre-established wire 

instructions will be honored on a same-day basis if received by the Administrator prior to 11:00 a.m. 

PT. Special wire transfer requests are available only with written documentation.  

4. The Participant may only request payments of that portion of its balance that represents 

Investment Funds and its proportional share of the income from the Investment Property that, in all 

cases, is actually held by the Custodian in the applicable Account in the Prime Fund.  

These Payment Procedures may be amended from time-to-time pursuant to the JPA Agreement 

provided, however, that the Administrator will only change the times set forth above after consulting 

with the Custodian. 

Portfolio Transactions  

Subject to the general supervision of the California CLASS, the Investment Advisor is responsible for 

placing the orders for the purchase and sale of securities within the Prime Fund, referred to herein as 

“portfolio transactions” for convenience. The portfolio transactions within the California CLASS 

Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, occur only with broker dealers acting as principals except 

for commercial paper transactions that may be placed directly with the issuers. Although California 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 12 

 

CLASS does not ordinarily seek but nonetheless may make profits through short-term trading, the 

Investment Advisor may, on behalf of the California CLASS, dispose of any portfolio investment prior to 

its maturity if such disposition is advisable. The weighted average maturity and weighted average life 

limits applicable to the Prime Fund is expected to result in high portfolio turnover. However, since 

brokerage commissions are not typically paid on the types of investments in which the Prime Fund is 

likely to invest, any turnover resulting from such investments should not adversely affect the NAV of 

the Prime Fund.   

The Investment Advisor seeks to obtain the best net price and the most favorable execution of portfolio 

transactions. Portfolio transactions will not occur between the Investment Advisor and Administrator, 

the Custodian, any Trustee, or any affiliate, officer, director, employee, or agent of any of them.  

Valuation of Prime Fund Shares 

The Administrator determines the NAV of the Shares of the Prime Fund at least daily on a mark-to-

market basis. The NAV per Share of the Prime Fund is computed by dividing the total value of the 

securities and other assets of the Prime Fund, less any liabilities, by the total outstanding Shares of the 

Prime Fund. Expenses and fees of the California CLASS accrue daily and are included within liabilities 

for the NAV calculation. 

The result of this calculation is a share value rounded to the nearest penny. Accordingly, the price at 

which Shares of the Prime Fund are sold and redeemed will not reflect unrealized gains or losses on 

securities within the Prime Fund that amount to less than $.005 per Share. The Administrator will 

endeavor to minimize the amount of such gains or losses. However, if unrealized gains or losses on 

securities within the Prime Fund should exceed $.005 per Share, the Prime Fund’s NAV per Share will 

change from $1.00 or be maintained at $1.00 per Share by retention of earnings or the reduction on a 

pro rata basis of each Participant’s Shares in the Prime Fund in the event of losses or by a pro rata 

distribution to each Participant in the event of gains.  

While it is a fundamental objective of the Prime Fund to maintain a NAV of $1.00 per Share, there can 

be no guarantee that the NAV will not deviate from $1.00 per Share. The NAV per Share of the Prime 

Fund may be affected by general changes in interest rates resulting in increases or decreases in the 

value of the securities in the Prime Fund. The fair market value of the Prime Fund’s securities will vary 

inversely to changes in prevailing interest rates. If a security is held to maturity, no loss or gain is 

normally realized as a result of these fluctuations.  

1. Portfolio Valuation  

At least daily, the Investment Property Value within the Prime Fund shall be determined on a mark-to-

market basis as follows: (a) securities for which market quotations are readily available are valued at 

the most recent bid price or yield equivalent as obtained from one or more market makers for such 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 13 

 

securities or a third-party pricing source; (2) all other securities and assets are valued at fair market 

value in good faith. 

2. Amendment  

These Valuation Procedures may be amended from time-to-time pursuant to the JPA Agreement.  

Use of Fair Value Measurement 

California CLASS follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Topic 

(ASC) 820 Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure for financial reporting purposes. ASC 820 defines fair 

value, establishes a single framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value 

measurement.  

Local government investment pools (LGIP) may select different methods of determining the value of 

assets held within the portfolio for reporting purposes. The two most common methods used to report 

on the assets of the portfolio are mark-to-market—frequently referred to as “fair value” or “fair market 

value”—and amortized cost. California CLASS utilizes the mark-to-market methodology. This involves 

obtaining prices for securities in the portfolio every business day. The mark-to-market methodology 

provides Participants with a high degree of transparency with respect to the underlying market values 

of the Prime Fund’s securities.  

The mark-to-market methodology (FASB) can and should be contrasted with the amortized cost method 

that some LGIPs utilize. LGIPs that follow GASB 79 are following the amortized cost method, which 

entails adjusting the value of the portfolio’s securities on a daily basis by a predetermined amount from 

the purchase date to the maturity date. While the amortized cost method produces very reliable and 

predictable asset valuations, that predetermined value may or may not accurately reflect the market 

value of the security.  

Computation of Yields  

A daily and seven-day average yield for the Prime Fund will be provided by the Administrator in published 

reports and information on www.californiaclass.com.  To obtain the daily yield, a daily income 

distribution per share factor is first calculated. That factor is the net income for that day divided by the 

number of settled shares outstanding. The factor is then multiplied by 365 (366 in a leap year) to 

produce the daily yield. The seven-day average yield is obtained by averaging the daily yield for seven 

identified, consecutive days. From time-to-time, the Administrator may also quote the yield for the 

Prime Fund on other basis for the information of the Participants.  

Participants should note that the yields quoted should not be considered a representation of the future 

yield of the Prime Fund since the yield is not fixed. Actual yields for the Prime Fund will depend not only 

http://www.californiaclass.com/


California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 14 

 

on the type, quality, and maturities of the investments held by the Prime Fund and the changes in 

interest rates for such investments but also on changes in the Prime Fund’s expenses during the period.  

Yield information may be useful in reviewing the performance of the Prime Fund and for providing a 

basis for comparison with other investment alternatives.  

Income Allocations  

All net income of the Prime Fund is determined as of the close of business each day (and at such other 

times as the Board may determine) and is credited pro rata to each Participant’s Account within the 

Prime Fund at month-end. The Prime Fund accrues net income on a daily basis and pays interest income 

on a monthly basis. 

Net income that has thus accrued to the Participants is converted as of the close of business at month-

end into additional Shares that are thereafter held in each Participant’s account. Reinvested net income 

is converted into full and fractional shares at the rate of one share for each one dollar credited. Net 

income for the Prime Fund consists of (1) all accrued interest income on assets of the Prime Fund plus 

(2) accretion of discount less (3) amortization of premium and less (4) accrued expenses.  

Retained Reserves 

Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, the Investment Advisor may retain from earnings and profits in the 

California CLASS Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, amounts deemed necessary to pay the 

debts and expenses of the California CLASS, as well as to meet other obligations of the California CLASS. 

The Investment Advisor possesses the power to establish from earnings and profits such reasonable 

reserves as they believe may be necessary or desirable.  Realized capital gains or losses shall be 

distributed in a timely and equitable manner as determined by the Investment Advisor. More information 

about retained reserves is available in the JPA Agreement, including the detailed accounting that the 

Investment Advisor provides to the Board on a quarterly basis on amounts deemed necessary or 

desirable by the Investment Advisor for retained reserves. 

California CLASS Expenses 

Pursuant to the JPA Agreement, Public Trust Advisors, as Administrator, for the California CLASS 

Investment Program, including the Prime Fund, shall receive a fee as described below in “California 

CLASS Fees.”  The Administrator’s fee shall be an Investment Property Liability. From its fee, the 

Administrator shall pay the following costs and expenses: the Investment Advisor’s fee set forth in the 

Investment Advisor Agreement, the Custodian’s fee set forth in the Custody Agreement, the costs of 

third parties retained by the Administrator to render investment advice pursuant to the Administrator 

Agreement, the fees to the Sponsors, marketing expenses, all custodial and securities clearance 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 15 

 

transaction charges, the cost of valuing the Investment Property, the cost of obtaining a rating or 

ratings, if any, the cost of other expenses agreed to by the Administrator and the California CLASS, all 

Investment Property record-keeping expenses, the cost of preparing monthly and annual reports, the 

expense of outside auditors required pursuant to the Administrator Agreement (but only if the 

Administrator selects such auditors), the fees of the counsel to the Administrator and/or the counsel to 

the California CLASS, the cost of Meetings of the Board, insurance costs and the costs of Participant 

surveys and mailings. Periodically, the Administrator shall provide a detailed accounting of such 

expenses to the Trustees. 

California CLASS Fees 

For the performance of its obligations as Administrator in the Administrator Agreement, the 

Administrator will charge a fee from the Investment Property Value (the daily fee). This daily fee will 

accrue on a daily basis and be paid monthly in arrears and prorated for any portion of the month in 

which the Administrator Agreement is in effect. The daily fee shall be calculated as follows: the 

Investment Property Value is multiplied by the applicable fee rate and is divided by 365 or 366 days in 

the event of a leap year to equal the daily fee accrual. The Investment Property Value shall be based 

on the prior day’s net assets. For weekend days and holidays, the net assets for the previous business 

day will be utilized for the calculation of fees. The applicable fee rate shall be determined by the 

Administrator monthly on the first business day of each month and shall be at an annual rate equal to 

up to fifteen (15) basis points. The Administrator is authorized to debit the applicable monthly fee 

amount within five (5) business days after the end of such month. All payment records and invoices will 

be presented at each subsequent meeting of the Board. Fees may be waived or abated at any time, or 

from time-to-time, at the sole discretion of the Administrator. Any such waived fees may be restored 

by the written agreement of the California CLASS.  

Reports to Participants  

Annually 

Audited financial statements of the California CLASS will be provided annually.  See “Independent 

Auditors” above.    

Monthly  

Within 15 days after the end of each month, the Administrator shall prepare and submit, or make 

available, to each Participant a statement disclosing any activity and a closing balance, including the 

number of Shares, in each of its accounts for such month.  

 

 



California CLASS Prime Fund Information Statement | 16 

 

Upon Request 

The Administrator, upon the request of a Participant, shall furnish to the Participant a statement of 

such Participant’s balance as of the date of such request subject only to account activity on such date.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  California CLASS Registration Packet   



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 2 

Welcome to California CLASS 
 

 

Thank you for choosing California CLASS! 

 

We believe you have made a sound financial decision in choosing California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System 

(California CLASS). We look forward to being a trusted partner to your organization and its investment management 

goals and are excited to connect with you to make your investment process a positive, easy experience. 

 

This packet contains all the materials necessary to set up your California CLASS account(s). If you have any questions 

about the registration process or about your California CLASS account(s), please do not hesitate to contact us. The 

California CLASS Client Service team can be reached any business day from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. PT by phone at 

(877) 930-5213 or by email at clientservices@californiaclass.com.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:clientservices@californiaclass.com


 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 3 

Registration Procedures 
 

To participate in California CLASS, please complete the following: 

1) Review the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and the applicable Information Statements relating to the 

California CLASS Prime Fund and the Enhanced Cash Fund (located in the Document Center at 

www.californiaclass.com). 

2) Complete the California CLASS Participant Representation Form (page 4).  

3) Complete the Participant Registration (page 5). 

4) Complete the Authorized Contacts Form (pages 6/7). 

5) Should you be interested in participating in California CLASS Prime, complete the California CLASS Prime Fund 

Account(s) to be Established form; you may open as many accounts as you wish (page 8). 

6) Should you be interested in participating in California CLASS Enhanced Cash, complete the California CLASS 

Enhanced Cash Fund Account(s) to be Established Form; you may open as many accounts as you wish (page 9). 

7) Keep the original forms for your records and send the completed packet to the California CLASS Client Service 

team by fax (877) 930-5214 or by email clientservices@californiaclass.com. 

 
Questions? Please contact us; we would love to hear from you: 

 

 California CLASS Client Service Team 

 T (877) 930-5213 

 clientservices@californiaclass.com 

 

Through the California CLASS website, www.californiaclass.com, Participants will be regularly informed of important 

program information, holidays, upcoming Board meetings, Participant events, conferences, and more. Board of Trustee 

meetings, which are open to the public, are generally held quarterly and discuss relevant issues to the governance and 

operations of the California CLASS program. 

 

 

https://www.newyorkclass.org/document-center
http://www.californiaclass.com/
mailto:clientservices@californiaclass.com
mailto:clientservices@californiaclass.com
http://www.californiaclass.com/


 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 4 

Participant Representation Form  
 

Participant Information  

Entity Name (Participant)      

   

Participant Representations  

The undersigned Authorized Signer for the Participant hereby represents and warrants the following during the period 

the Participant is investing in the California CLASS Investment Program: 

• The Participant is (1) a Public Agency (as defined in the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement) and (2)(a) a 

political subdivision of the State of California or (b) an organization whose income is excluded from taxable gross 

income under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code, in each case, that has the authority to invest funds in 

its treasury in investments in accordance with Section 53601 of the California Government Code. 

• The Participant is authorized to invest in the California CLASS.   

• Any Authorized Signer for the Participant designated in this California CLASS Registration Packet has full power 

and authority to make investments for the above Participant in the California CLASS Investment Program unless 

the California CLASS receives written notice from the Participant otherwise. 

• The Participant has reviewed and agrees to the limitations described in the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 

and the Information Statements for the Funds within the California CLASS Investment Program and 

acknowledges that it has been supplied with or been given access to information it requested in connection with 

making an investment in the California CLASS Investment Program.   

• The Participant has reviewed the Investment Policies for the Funds within the California CLASS Investment 

Program and has determined that they are consistent with the legal and policy limitations applicable to the 

Participant’s investments. 

• The Participant has consulted with its own counsel and advisers as to all matters concerning investment in the 

California CLASS Investment Program. 

                

Authorized Signer 

    

Signature    Date 

    

Print Name   Title 

 

 

Many factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment 

involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past 

performance is no guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment decision may incur losses. 

 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 5 

Participant Registration 
 
Entity Information 

Entity Name (Participant)    

Entity Type:  City/Town County   School District       Special  District 

 Other (Specify)     

Mailing Address    

City     Zip     County    

Physical Address (if different than above)   

City     Zip     County    

Tax ID     Fiscal Year End Date (Month/Day)    

California CLASS is hereby authorized to honor any telephone, faxed, or electronic request believed to be authentic for withdrawal of 
funds. The withdrawal proceeds can be sent only to the bank(s) indicated below unless changed by written instructions. Each 
Participant is responsible for notifying California CLASS of any changes to its account by filling out and sending via mail or email the 

Forms available on the California CLASS website.  
 

Wires will be distributed every hour with the final distribution ending at 11:00 a.m. PT; distribution times are subject to change as 

needed by the California CLASS Administrator. Additionally, California CLASS must be notified of any contributions by 11:00 a.m. PT 

to receive same day credit. If funds are not received by 2:00 p.m. PT, contribution orders will be voided.   

 

Banking Information 

Bank Name   Bank Routing Number (ABA)   

Account Title   Account Number   

Bank Contact   Contact’s Phone Number   

Wire ACH Both 
 

Additional Banking Information (Optional) 

Bank Name   Bank Routing Number (ABA)   

Account Title   Account Number   

Bank Contact   Contact’s Phone Number    

Wire ACH Both 

  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 6 

Authorized Contacts 

Authorized Signers Can: Read-Only Users Can: 

Approve changes to the Investor Profile  

Update banking/contact information  

Transfer funds 

Receive account updates 

Receive account updates 

Request “view-only” access to monthly statements 
and transaction confirmations 

 

Authorized Signer 

      

Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
Signature Required  Phone 

    
Email  Fax 
 

Email Notifications (notice of report availability in the online portal)  

 Monthly Statements   

 Transaction Confirmations 

Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone 

    

Email  Fax 

Permissions (check one only) Email Notifications (notice of report availability in the online portal)  

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds* Monthly Statements   

 Read-Only Access Transaction Confirmations 

Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone 

    

Email  Fax 

Permissions (check one only) Email Notifications (notice of report availability in the online portal)  

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds* Monthly Statements   

 Read-Only Access Transaction Confirmations 

  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 7 

Authorized Contacts (cont.) 

Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone 

    

Email  Fax 

 

Permissions (check one only) Email Notifications (notice of report availability in the online portal)  

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds* Monthly Statements   

 Read-Only Access Transaction Confirmations 

Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    

*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone 

    
Email  Fax 

 

Permissions (check one only) Email Notifications (notice of report availability in the online portal)  

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds* Monthly Statements   

 Read-Only Access Transaction Confirmations 

Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    

*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone 

    
Email  Fax 

 

Permissions (check one only) Email Notifications (notice of report availability in the online portal)  

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds* Monthly Statements   

     Read-Only Access      Transaction Confirmations 

 
 

 

 

  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 8 

California CLASS Prime Fund Account(s) to be Established 

Entity Name (Participant): _______________________________________________________________   

 

Desired Subaccount Name(s)*: 

(To be completed by Participant) 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

*Name must be limited to 35 characters. 

 

Once your California CLASS account has been established, you will receive a confirmation email with your login 

credentials from no-reply@californiaclass.com. If you do not receive your login credentials within 48 business hours of 

submission, please first check your junk or spam folder before calling the California CLASS Client Service team. 

 

mailto:no-reply@californiaclass.com


 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (877) 930-5213 

F (877) 930-5214 

clientservices@californiaclass.com 
www.californiaclass.com    

 

Page 9 

California CLASS Enhanced Cash Fund Account(s) to be Established 

Entity Name (Participant): _______________________________________________________________   

 

Desired Subaccount Name(s)*: 

(To be completed by Participant) 

   

 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

 
*Name must be limited to 35 characters. 

 

Once your California CLASS account has been established, you will receive a confirmation email with your login 

credentials from no-reply@californiaclass.com. If you do not receive your login credentials within 48 business hours of 

submission, please first check your junk or spam folder before calling the California CLASS Client Service team. 

California CLASS Enhanced Cash is designed to 

complement the daily liquidity offered by the 

California CLASS Prime portfolio.  

 

Enhanced Cash does not seek to maintain a 

stable net asset value (NAV) and does not offer 

daily liquidity. Unlike the Prime Fund, investing in 

Enhanced Cash introduces the potential for the 

reporting of unrealized and realized gains and losses.  

 

If you have questions about which of your local 

government’s funds are appropriate for the California 

CLASS Enhanced Cash portfolio, please contact your 

California CLASS representative or email 

info@californiaclass.com.   

mailto:info@californiaclass.com


San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM 6E 
SUBJECT:  Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee and Standing  
   Committee Assignments  

DISCUSSION: 

The District encourages Trustee participation at committee meetings. The Board’s standing 
committees provide the analysis necessary to consider important governance positions and to 
develop policies and budgets that direct the District’s mission and functions. The 
recommendations made by the standing committees are reported to the full Board for final 
action.  

District policies direct the Board President to appoint and publicly announce the chairs and 
members of the standing committee at the beginning of each year. To help with this process, 
President Martin asks all SMCMVCD trustees to review the descriptions attached as Agenda 
item 6E.2 and consider if they would like to participate in one or more committees before 
attending the March 8 Board meeting. You are not required to take any action to remain on a 
committee in which you already serve. The list of current assignments is attached as Agenda 
item 6E.1.  

Since the Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee is new for 2023, all seats must be filled. A 
summary of this information can be found below.  

The Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee was re-established at the February 9, 2022, Board 
of Trustees meeting by President Martin. The Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee will 
identify, recruit, mentor, and recommend new SMCMVCD Board Officers for the 2024 Board 
election slate. The Committee’s reinstatement resulted from the January 24, 2022, Special Study 
Session in which Policy 4150 Nomination and Election of Board Officers was thoroughly 
discussed. The committee will likely need to meet 2-3 times in 2023. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. SMCMVCD Committee Assignments
2. SMCMVCD Committee Description and Request Form



Trustee Board Officers and 
Committee Assignments 
As of March 1, 2023

Board Officers Finance 
Mason Brutschy - Chair 
Robert Riechel 
Muhammad Baluom 
Ray Williams 
Carolyn Parker

President – Kati Martin 
Vice President – Kat Lion 
Secretary – Donna Rutherford 
Assistant Secretary – Vacant 

Strategic Planning 
Ed Degliantoni - Chair 
Catherine Carlton Policy 
Ray Williams 
Laura Walsh 

Manager Review 

Robert Riechel – Chair 
Kati Martin
Donna Rutherford 
Carolyn Parker
Kat Lion
Ed Degliantoni 

Kat Lion – Chair
Ed Degliantoni 
Mason Brutschy 
Paul Fregulia Legislation 
Kati Martin Donna Rutherford 
Muhammad Baluom Robert Riechel 

Kati Martin

Environmental/Public Outreach 
Ad Hoc Real Estate Committee 
Paul Norton - Chair 
Kat Lion
Ray Williams 

D. Scott Smith - Chair
Catherine Carlton
Carolyn Parker
Kat Lion
Peter DeJarnatt
Ed Degliantoni



 

 
 
 
                    
 
 

SMCMVCD TRUSTEE COMMITTEE REQUEST FORM 
 

The District encourages Trustee participation at committee meetings.  The Board’s standing 
committees provide the analysis necessary to consider important governance positions and to 
develop policies and budgets that direct the District’s mission and functions. The 
recommendations made by the standing committees are reported to the full Board for final 
action.  
 
District policies direct the Board President to appoint and publicly announce the chairs and 
members of the standing committees for the ensuing year. To help with this selection process, 
please consider which committee(s) you would like to participate in for this coming year. You 
are not required to take any action to remain on a committee in which you already serve. 
 

1. Finance Committee.  Governs the financial management of the District. This committee 
oversees the annual budget preparation, may coordinate salary negotiations with staff 
when necessary, and appraise the monthly financial statements and expenditures provided 
for each Board meeting.  All negotiated agreements and budgetary recommendations are 
brought to the Board for approval. 

 
2. Environmental and Public Relations Committee. This committee is under review for 

consolidation with the Strategic Planning Committee. If needed, committee seats will be 
filled after that process concludes. 

 
3. Strategic Planning Committee. Governs the development of the strategic course for the 

District.  This committee oversees the production and review of the District Strategic 
Plan.  This Plan includes the District Mission, long-range planning strategies, and 
strategic and tactical plans for each department and the Board.  All recommendations for 
action are brought to the Board for approval. 

 
4. Managers Evaluation Committee.   Directs the evaluation of the District Manager 

every year.  The evaluation is performed by each Trustee, and the evaluation assessment 
by the committee is provided to the District Manager by the Board President when 
completed. Also makes recommendations on salary adjustments when necessary. All 
recommendations for action are brought to the Board for approval.  

 
5. Policy Committee.  The Policy Committee drafts, analyzes, and recommends District 

policies for Board of Trustee approval. With the Policy Committee’s guidance, the 
District strives to thoroughly review and update the District Policy Manual regularly. All 
recommendations for action are brought to the Board for approval.  
 



6. Legislative.  Legislative Committee members independently analyze and track pending 
legislation impacting District operations or governance. Committee members also work 
with District staff on suggested actions on bills that may affect the District and whether 
Board notification is appropriate. The committee does not meet but would do so if 
necessary. 
 

7. Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee. Identifies and recruits new candidates for 
Board Officer positions. The Committee will recommend a slate of Board Officer 
nominees to Board in accordance with Policy 4150 Nomination and Election of Board 
Officers 
 

Please select a committee(s) you would like to work with. The District's efficient operation and 
ultimate success depend largely upon your participation.   
 
The new committee members will determine the date, time, and location of a committee’s 
meeting(s) at the start of the calendar year. 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Trustee Name 
 
 
Finance Committee      _______________ 
         Yes 
 
 
Strategic Planning Committee    _______________ 
         Yes 
 
 
Managers Evaluation Committee    _______________ 
         Yes 
 
 
Policy Committee      _______________ 
         Yes 
 
 
Legislative       _______________ 
         Yes 
 
Ad hoc Officer Nominating Committee   _______________ 
         Yes 



Agenda Item 7.A. - Operations 
Staff Program Reports 

   
 

Field Operations March 2023 
How Rainfall Affects Mosquito Control in San Mateo County 
District staff have been hard inspecting and treating their seasonal rainwater impounds for mosquitoes such as 
Aedes squamiger, the winter salt marsh mosquito.  This mosquito can fly up to 20 miles.  It is an aggressive, day-
biting mosquito and can be a significant pest to humans.  Throughout San Mateo County, 245 seasonal sites are 
inspected weekly by mosquito control staff through the winter and spring, depending on rainfall. The District’s 
Vector Control Technicians diligently collect larvae samples weekly, providing them to the laboratory to identify 
the species and life stage. Knowledge of the mosquito larva life stage is a significant factor that dictates when 
technicians perform mosquito control treatments. Appropriate timing and treatment type will optimize District 
resources.   

In San Mateo County, 15.67 inches of rain fell in January and February.  This is a significant increase over the 
average total precipitation of 1.92 inches of rain for these two months over the prior three years. This high level 
of rain will likely be a significant factor in mosquito production in the coming months.  The extended rainy 
season could push back the start of the seasonal catch basin treatment program by several weeks.  Consistent 
rainfall keeps the stormwater system circulating, which delays the production of West Nile virus vector 
mosquitoes (Culex pipiens) and reduces the need for catch basin treatments.  While catch basin mosquito 
production might decline due to the rain, wet weather intensifies other mosquito issues. The District has already 
seen a marked increase in the number of service requests received for reports of standing water.  January and 
February saw 69 service requests for standing water compared to 45 such requests this time last year.  Although 
year-by-year rainfall varies, the job of controlling mosquitoes continues.  District staff must constantly apply 
technical knowledge to adapt their methods to mother nature. 

 

Rainfall for January and February from 2020 to 2023 

 January February Total Rainfall 

2023 12.59” 3.07” 15.67” 

2022 0.41” .01” .42” 

2021 2.92” 1.25” 4.17” 

2020 1.18” 0” 1.18” 

 



Agenda Item 7.A. - Operations 
Staff Program Reports 

   
 

Seasonal Mosquito Breeding Sites 
 

Carduff Kavanaugh 
Field in East Palo Alto 
is filled with rainwater. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

SF water Company 
Property in East Palo 
Alto 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda Item 7.A. - Operations 
Staff Program Reports 

   
 

Sharp Park Golf Course in Pacifica 

 

Two areas 
of Mills 
Field in San 
Bruno 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda Item 7.A. - Operations 
Staff Program Reports 

   
 

February 2023 Service Requests 

Type of Request February 2023 5-year Feb 
average 

Mosquito 55 44 
Ticks 46 12 
Rodents 46 30 
Insect identification 6 7 
Yellowjackets/wasps 5 8 
Mosquito fish 5 4 
Dead birds 4 5 
Wildlife 2 4 
Other 5 5 
Total 174 119 

This table contains the number of each type of service request in February 2023 compared to the five-year averages in February.  

Total service requests are higher this February than the five-year average (174 requests compared to 119 requests). This difference is 
mainly because of a residential tick study that the laboratory staff began conducting over the past two seasons, which elevated the 
number of tick service requests in 2022 and 2023. Prior to this study, February typically saw up to one or two tick requests. Additionally, 
both mosquito and rodent requests were above average for February 2023, with 55 mosquito requests compared to the 5-year 
average of 44, and 46 rodent requests compared to the 5-year average of 30. 

The “Mosquito” category included mosquito complaints and reports of standing water. The “other” category included a variety of 
insect-related requests, including bees, cockroaches, and fleas. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                     



Agenda Item 7.B. – Laboratory 
Staff Program Reports 

Lab Activities in February 2023 

Tick Surveillance for Water Year 2022-2023 
In February, laboratory staff continued winter surveillance for adult Ixodes pacificus (Western black-
legged ticks). Ticks are collected by dragging a one-meter square sheet of white flannel over the 
vegetation alongside trails; a technique called “flagging.” Ixodes pacificus ticks will be tested for the 
presence of Borrelia burgdorferi (the causative agent of Lyme disease), as well as Borrelia miyamotoi 
(the agent of hard-tick relapsing fever) and Anaplasma phagocytophilum (the agent of granulocytic 
anaplasmosis). 

Parks surveyed in February include Frontierland Park, Portola Redwoods State Park near La Honda, and 
open space areas in northern Hillsborough. The laboratory also visited six schools in Pacifica to assess the 
risk of tick exposure. This year, District staff are also surveying residents’ yards for ticks, focusing primarily 
on Pacifica and Hillsborough. 

Tick Collections from parks, 2022-2023 Winter Season (through February 2023) 

Park/Neighborhood Nearest City/Town Number of Ix. pacificus  
Edgewood County Park Redwood City 84 
Hidden Canyon Park Belmont 270 
San Pedro Valley Park Pacifica 196 
Mori Point Pacifica 0 
Memorial Park Pescadero 39 
Mills Canyon Park Burlingame 18 
Milagra Ridge Pacifica 17 
Frontierland Park Pacifica 245 
North Pescadero Marsh Pescadero 217 
Burleigh H. Murray Ranch Half Moon Bay 272 
North Hillsborough Hillsborough 263 
Portola Redwoods La Honda 383 

 

 
 

Vector Ecologist Arielle Crews 
flags for ticks in the vegetation at 
the edge of a school campus. 



Agenda Item 7.B. – Laboratory 
Staff Program Reports 

Winter rains create seasonal mosquito breeding sources. 
One unwelcome consequence of the extensive rainfall in San Mateo County this year is an increase in 
breeding sources for certain species of local mosquitoes.  Heavy rain fills in low spots in natural areas, 
creating what District staff call “seasonal impounds.”  This trapped water can take weeks or months to 
dry out, during which opportunistic 
mosquito species' perfect breeding 
conditions exist.   

In contrast to mosquitoes in the Culex and 
Culiseta genera that lay eggs in floating 
rafts on the surface of standing water, 
Aedes mosquitoes lay individual eggs on 
the soil or other surfaces outside the water.  
These eggs will lie dormant for several 
months, anticipating the future high tides, 
flooding, or rainfall that will trigger the eggs 
to hatch during the appropriate season.  
During the winter months, District staff 
frequently encounter larvae of different 
Aedes species in various source types in the 
winter, from seasonal impounds in salt and 
freshwater marshes, to ponds and 
treeholes. 

In January and February of this year, the most frequently collected Aedes mosquito in larval samples 
was Aedes washinoi.  This is a common mosquito species in coastal California. Larval sources include 
seasonal freshwater ground pools, often near marshes or streams. Adults emerge late winter to early 
spring and do not fly far from larval sources.  Adult females are aggressive day biters that readily feed 
on humans and will generate numerous service requests in years in which they are abundant.  
Thankfully, Ae. washinoi has not been shown to transmit any diseases. Take a look at this month’s 
Operations Staff Program Report for more examples of flooded natural areas where these mosquitoes 
may be found! 

Forest area flooded by winter rains. 

Aedes washinoi mosquitoes (adult female and larva). 



Agenda Item 7.B. – Laboratory 
Staff Program Reports 

CO2 Traps – Average adult mosquitoes collected per trap per night 
The following table and graphs show the average number of adult mosquitoes collected per CO2 trap 
per night during February. Counts for all species are very low, less than five per trap, as is expected 
during the winter. The abundance of adult mosquitoes is expected to remain low until spring. 
 

 

Species February 
2023 

5-year Feb 
average 

Culex pipiens 1.758 2.494 

Culex tarsalis 0.129 0.338 

Culiseta incidens 0.032 0.311 

Culex erythrothorax 0 0.128 

Aedes sierrensis 0 0 

Aedes washinoi 0 0.039 

Average number of adult mosquitoes collected in CO2 traps per trap per night over the past five 
years. The graph shows the six most common species of mosquitoes trapped in San Mateo County. 

 



Agenda Item 7.B. – Laboratory 
Staff Program Reports 

Larval Surveillance 
During February, larval surveillance focused on monitoring seasonal natural sources, such as freshwater 
impounds and marshes, while continuing to check backyard sources. Additionally, water from February 
rains can collect under houses and provide a sheltered place for larvae to develop. District staff 
collected 154 larval samples in February. Technicians use a dipper to take a water sample and visually 
inspect it for mosquito larvae. If larvae are present, the sample is taken back to the District laboratory for 
species identification.  

In 39% of samples, the most frequently occurring species was Culiseta incidens. This mosquito is found 
year-round in San Mateo County in a variety of sources, especially backyard fountains, and fishponds.  
These mosquito species are not known to transmit human disease. Other commonly collected species in 
February were marsh breeding mosquitoes such as Culiseta inornata, Aedes washinoi, and Aedes 
squamiger. Although these species do not currently vector any diseases in this region, they are known to 
be voracious day-biting mosquitoes, especially Ae. squamiger. The District carefully monitors the saline 
or brackish marsh areas that breed Ae. squamiger, as this species has the potential to emerge in huge 
numbers when the weather warms up. 

 

Number of larval samples containing each mosquito species from water samples collected in 
February 2023. Larval samples commonly contain multiple species.  



Agenda Item 7.C. 

Staff Program Reports 

Public Health Education and Outreach, Feb 2023 

Outreach, Post-Service Request Feedback, Website & Newsletter  

Outreach and Activities 
 School presentations in February included the AP Environmental Science classes and a general 

biology class at Aragon High School in San Mateo; a wilderness class at Thorton School in Daly City; 

preschool classes in Belle Haven; TK, K, and 3rd grade classes in El Granada; 1st and 2nd grade classes 

in Millbrae, and preschool classes in Pacifica. 

 Rachel visited a Brownie scout troop in San Carlos 

to teach Scouts (2nd grade) about the mosquito life 

cycle and tick safety. 

 Grassroots Ecology had requested tick safety 

training several months in advance. Rachel 

presented to a group of about two dozen staff, 

interns, AmeriCorps members, and volunteers 

about tick safety.  The talk was well-received, with 

positive feedback from several participants. 

 

Feedback from Residents about District Services 
 Very informative and helpful service. 

 “Everyone I spoke with at the office was helpful and professional.” 

 “The technician was thorough and knowledgeable and provided excellent support.” 

 

Website Analytics 
 In January 2023, there were 2,644 visits to the website. 

 Top 10 pages for January 2023 included the District homepage and pages on topics of mosquito-

like insects, service request page, yellowjackets, rabies, bites of unknown origin, biting mites, staff, 

contact information, and preventing tick bites. 

The concluding activity of a ‘Tick Talk’ is dragging 

for ticks and time for questions. Here Grassroots 

Ecology staff see a tick on a white drag cloth.   



Agenda Item 7.D. – Information Technology 

Staff Program Reports 

Information Technology, March 2023 

Cyber Security 

Summary 
 Ransomware in other government agencies 

Ransomware is continuing to prove it’s more than a “boogeyman.” 
Ransomware continues to be a huge problem for even the most equipped agencies. Just recently, 

Oakland underwent a considerable breach that crippled its tech infrastructure. Ransomware is 

devastating for those afflicted by its corrosive touch. A one-person IT operation can sometimes prove 

challenging to ensure the district is safe. On the one hand, the district’s scale is nowhere near the scale 

of Oakland’s; on the other hand, it creates fewer vectors for mistakes when making changes to IT 

infrastructure. However, the District must fill this gap with vendors to successfully cover ransomware's 

monotonous tasks. With ransomware being so rampant and insurance requirements increasing, the 

need for vendors can take some of the pressure off. Although this reliance may come with future 

budgetary increases, the reliance on vendors is necessary to keep up with the ever changing 

landscape.  

Oakland’s breach is an example of why investment in IT infrastructure is warranted. The effects and 

downtime of critical services are still rearing their ugly head weeks after it was announced. Time is our 

most valuable commodity, so I continue to preach the importance of shoring up our security. The district 

currently has a sound IT strategy. Still, we must continually update and modernize the IT infrastructure to 

protect against new threats. Hopefully, the Board understands our difficulties and why investing in our IT 

department will save our district time and money in the long run. Let’s invest in preventative measures 

now, so that we aren’t gridlocked in the future. 

Read more about the Oakland cyberattacks using the links below. 

References: 
Oakland declares state of emergency after cyberattack hobbles critical government tech (msn.com) 

Ransomware attack cripples Oakland’s 311 system as winter storm hits region (msn.com) 

https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/other/oakland-declares-state-of-emergency-after-cyber-attack-hobbles-critical-government-tech/ar-AA17wYU9
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/us/ransomware-attack-cripples-oakland-s-311-system-as-winter-storm-hits-region/ar-AA17Uipd


San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Agenda Item 8 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 

Committee Chair Meetings 

Manager Weber and President Martin met with the majority of District standing committee 
chairs since the last Board meeting to discuss the outlook for 2023. Below is a brief description 
of what was discussed. 

Policy Committee – priority policies needing committee review were discussed. All policy 
committee actions will be brought to the Board for final approval. The most substantial items to 
be reviewed include  

• 4150 Board Officer’s Nomination and Election – this policy will undergo edits and 
review to align with recommendations from the January 2022 Board Study Session 
 

• 4070 Board Assistant Secretary – it will be considered whether this role could be 
replaced by a staff member and a new Board Officer role put in its place 
 

• 4090 Committees of the Board of Trustees – the Environmental/Public Outreach 
Committee will be considered for dissolution, and the Officer Nomination Committee 
will need to be added.  
 

• 2070 Family Care and Medical Leave – will be updated to reflect California law passed 
in 2023 
 

• SERIES 6000 – FINANCIAL – the majority of the twelve financial policy sections will 
be reviewed by the Finance Committee in 2023. Their recommendations will be made to 
the Policy Committee and passed to the Board for final approval.   
 

Finance Committee – plans to modernize many financial policies and find ways to reduce 
administrative burden and reflect current government best practices while continuing strict 
internal controls.  
 
Strategic Planning Committee – an independent Information and Technology section will be 
added to the strategic plan. The remaining document will be considered towards the end of 
2023.  



San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

2 | P a g e  
 

Environmental/Public Outreach Committee – reasons for dissolving the committee were 
discussed with Chair Smith. The Policy Committee will examine the removal of the committee 
from the District’s structure. 

Inter-agency Communication and Regulatory 

In February, District staff began working with the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) on rodenticide information gathering. This concerns the California Department of 
Pesticide Regulation (CDPR) beginning a review of Second-Generation Anticoagulant 
Rodenticides (SGAR) pesticide products under reevaluation as required by Assembly Bill 1788. 
CDPR is not seeking immediate regulatory action to mitigate SGAR concerns but seeking insight 
and consultation from responsible use agencies, such as the District, on possible mitigation 
strategies to reduce non-target wildlife exposure. The Vector-Borne Disease Section of the 
CDPH is compiling this information for all interested parties and providing a summary report to 
CDPR. When used properly, this important tool can be crucial in protecting public health. 
Working with agencies such as the CDPH is essential because they bring the credibility of a 
State agency to the table that small governments cannot.  

Legislative Update 

AB 557 to Extend Authorization of Emergency Remote Meetings 

Assembly Bill 557, a CSDA sponsored bill on the Brown Act, would establish modified remote 
meeting procedures during specified emergencies.  

California's COVID-19 state of emergency will terminate at the end of February 2023, ending 
the government’s ability to use AB 361 for COVID-19-related reasons. However, if the 
Governor declares an emergency declaration for different reasons, local agencies may rely on 
AB 361 through the end of 2023.  

However, after 2023, the provisions added to the Brown Act will expire. AB 557 looks to 
maintain the potential for modified remote meetings beyond the end of 2023 by removing the 
expiration date from AB 361. The bill also seeks to change the 30-day window for government 
bodies to pass a resolution recognizing the state of emergency to 45 days. Therefore, providing 
agencies with an additional two weeks and accommodating those agencies that meet monthly. 
The District’s parent agency, the California Special District Association (CSDA), supports the 
bill.  Staff will submit a letter supporting the bill through CSDA’s automated  

 

 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fgcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.cdpr.ca.gov*2Fdocs*2Fregistration*2Freevaluation*2Fchemicals*2Fsgars.htm__*3B!!AvL6XA!2-0ub4iInxjDrZwunfJAI1U50H0KQguT8q6IvCM-EJ_KqOTZQXGR8DofVKhMomvNS4JcXX0mStMX5Dka-Ce8EkaRD7jGKYIj6KQ*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7CBrenna.McNabb*40cdpr.ca.gov*7C78beaa82eda24e4d414408daeddec177*7C0fc528a55d144d0da7bef2487d8d0e30*7C0*7C0*7C638083838247553904*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DMPEH*2B3Xp1Oq1u5PySzXfJwOGpfWlafKSfUBUKDZj0wg*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!AvL6XA!1FjnJk5sNcfOfQpebQIgooZ7lCtQuRStRuxi0lvTbV7st9r5nA7GPam9uQ5n8bY_pK9S_WTk-g-Xt_V1YoF6b633f1cq822p2X5k*24&data=05*7C01*7CBrenna.McNabb*40cdpr.ca.gov*7C5940286cc1964353b69d08daee9ffb90*7C0fc528a55d144d0da7bef2487d8d0e30*7C0*7C0*7C638084668158951462*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=b0gyhbVmaqmHTBpo3HYa9z0AlGDKy*2BYvn3lYQ5ICLpI*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqJSUqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSoqJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!AvL6XA!xv_yHJIvI8sg2GNRLnmfsruts27yMEzFyMWKeeuea6-QfMSVwlGjT1hn4cUwGsW8IzMRchrRnwYY3GHYwsTt6UdV2g4jhrwOQwk$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fgcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.cdpr.ca.gov*2Fdocs*2Fregistration*2Freevaluation*2Fchemicals*2Fsgars.htm__*3B!!AvL6XA!2-0ub4iInxjDrZwunfJAI1U50H0KQguT8q6IvCM-EJ_KqOTZQXGR8DofVKhMomvNS4JcXX0mStMX5Dka-Ce8EkaRD7jGKYIj6KQ*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7CBrenna.McNabb*40cdpr.ca.gov*7C78beaa82eda24e4d414408daeddec177*7C0fc528a55d144d0da7bef2487d8d0e30*7C0*7C0*7C638083838247553904*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DMPEH*2B3Xp1Oq1u5PySzXfJwOGpfWlafKSfUBUKDZj0wg*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!AvL6XA!1FjnJk5sNcfOfQpebQIgooZ7lCtQuRStRuxi0lvTbV7st9r5nA7GPam9uQ5n8bY_pK9S_WTk-g-Xt_V1YoF6b633f1cq822p2X5k*24&data=05*7C01*7CBrenna.McNabb*40cdpr.ca.gov*7C5940286cc1964353b69d08daee9ffb90*7C0fc528a55d144d0da7bef2487d8d0e30*7C0*7C0*7C638084668158951462*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=b0gyhbVmaqmHTBpo3HYa9z0AlGDKy*2BYvn3lYQ5ICLpI*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqJSUqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSoqJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!AvL6XA!xv_yHJIvI8sg2GNRLnmfsruts27yMEzFyMWKeeuea6-QfMSVwlGjT1hn4cUwGsW8IzMRchrRnwYY3GHYwsTt6UdV2g4jhrwOQwk$
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB1788


San Mateo County MVCD 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

March 8, 2023 

3 | P a g e  
 

Form 700  

The Form 700 Annual Statement of Economic Interest filing is due April 1, 2023. 
Investments, interests in real property, and business positions held on the date you joined the 
SMCMVCD Board must be reported.  In addition, income (including loans, gifts, and travel 
payments) received during the annual filing period is reportable. 

For questions about your filing requirement, please get in touch with Devina Walker at 650-
344-8592 or dwalker@smcmvcd.org. Devina has graciously offered to help any trustee that 
would like to come before the March 8 Board meeting. You must be able to get into your 
District email to gain access. Below are additional ways you can get help with filing.  

NetFile Technical Support at filerhelp@netfile.com. 

For technical questions regarding what to report, contact the FPPC at advice@fppc.ca.gov or 
(866) 275-3772. 

Additional information regarding Form 700 is available on the FPPC website at 
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html. 

Real Estate 

The purchased property architectural project at 1415 North Carolan Ave is still underway. 
Please see attachment 8.1 to view this month’s Project Management Report.  

 

 

 

mailto:dwalker@smcmvcd.org
mailto:filerhelp@netfile.com
mailto:advice@fppc.ca.gov
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/Form700.html


Agenda Item 8.1 

1415 N. Carolan Ave. Project Management Report 

Reporting date     

2/1/22-1/28/22 

Project objective(s) 

1. Eliminate the need for leased property
2. Meet District space, parking, and equipment storage long and short-term needs
3. Develop a real estate strategy that spans up to ten years
4. Prioritize building projects. Projects will be prioritized based on the following (in order

of importance):
a. Need- these items are either required per code/law or designed to protect the

structure, occupants, and stored equipment.
b. cost
c. construction best practices

Work completed in January and February 

1. Completed discussions with the City of Burlingame on earthquake retrofit requirements
2. Draft plans are continuing to be finalized

Work planned to complete in March 
1. Finalize draft plans and provide them to the Real Estate Committee for comment

2.  Facilitate meeting with the Burlingame Building Department and Aetypic

Outlook for the remainder of 2023 

1. Continue finalizing draft plans and working with the Real Estate Committee while
navigating new codes implemented since the property purchase 

Budget status and outlook 

Budget spent to date:            $107,773.08 

Budget remaining:             $42,226.92 

No new invoices have been received since the February Board meeting 


	000 March 8, 2023 Agenda
	Agenda Item 5A February 8, 2023 meeting minutes
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TELECONFERENCE
	February 8, 2023, 6:00 PM
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. ROLL CALL
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
	5. CONSENT CALENDAR
	6. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
	7. STAFF REPORTS
	8. MANAGER’S REPORT
	9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
	11. ADJOURNMENT: 7:57 PM

	Agenda Item 5B.0 Pesticide Purchase
	San Mateo County MVCD
	CONSENT CALENDAR AGENDA
	BACKGROUND AND STATUS
	RECOMMENDATION
	REFERENCE MATERIALS AVAILABLE


	Agenda Item 5B.1 Adapco Purchase Order & Requisition  MetalarvS-PT 2023
	Purchase Requisition

	Agenda Item 5B.2 ADAPCO  Quote SAN MATEO MVCD MetLarv
	Agenda Item 5B.3 VBC 2023 Sole Source - ADAPCO
	Agenda Item 5B.4 Purchase Order & Requisition Clarke Natular G30 and Natular G
	Purchase Requisition

	Agenda Item 5B.5 Clarke San Mateo County Natular Quote Feb 2023
	Agenda Item 5B.6 Clarke Spinosad Natular Sole Source 2023
	Agenda Item 6A  Finance Committee Report - February 27, 2023
	Agenda Item 6B January, 2023 Financial Report
	Agenda Item 4A.1 Jan-2023 Financials for Board Meeting (Revised).pdf
	Balance Sheet-Jan
	YTD Actuals vs. YRLY BUDGET-Jan
	AR Aging-Jan
	GF Cash Activity-Jan
	CPF Cash Activity-Jan
	Payroll-Jan
	GF Check Register-Jan
	CPF Check Register-Jan
	Credit Card Report-Jan
	Credit Card Stmt-Jan


	Agenda Item 6C SMCMVCD Assessment and Tax Administration Proposal
	Agenda Item 6C.1 SCI Tax Admsinistration Three Year Agreement
	Agenda Item 6D  Staff Report - Alternate Depositories for District Reserves 1-30-2023
	Agenda Item 6D.1 CalCLASS Information
	Agenda Item 6D.2 CalCLASS Agreement
	Agenda Item 6E SMCMVCD Committee Assignment Staff Report
	Agenda Item 6E.1 Current Committee Assignments
	Agenda Item 6E.2 Committee Assignment Request Form
	Agenda Item 7A Operations March 2023
	Agenda Item 7B Laboratory March 2023
	Tick Surveillance for Water Year 2022-2023
	Winter rains create seasonal mosquito breeding sources.
	CO2 Traps – Average adult mosquitoes collected per trap per night
	Larval Surveillance

	Agenda Item 7C Public Health Education March 2023
	Agenda Item 7D Information and Technology March 2023
	Agenda Item 8 Managers Report
	Agenda Item 8.1 Real Estate Report March meeting

	Entity Name 1: 
	Print Name: 
	Date: 
	Title: 
	Local Government Name Participant: 
	Entity Type: 
	Mailing Address: 
	City: 
	Zip: 
	County: 
	Physical Address: 
	City1: 
	Zip1: 
	County1: 
	Tax ID: 
	Fiscal Year End Date MonthDay: 
	Bank Name: 
	Bank Routing Number ABA: 
	Account Title: 
	Account Number: 
	Bank Contact: 
	Contacts Phone Number: 
	Bank Name1: 
	Bank Routing Number ABA1: 
	Account Title1: 
	Account Number1: 
	Bank Contact1: 
	Contacts Phone Number1: 
	Entity Selection: Type
	Radio Button0: Off
	Radio Button1: Off
	Radio Button2: Off
	Transfer Type 1: Type
	Transfer Type 2: Type
	Radio Button3: Off
	Print First and Last Name: 
	Title1: 
	Phone: 
	Fax: 
	Print First and Last Name 2: 
	Title 2: 
	Email 2: 
	Phone 2: 
	Fax 2: 
	Email: 
	Print First and Last Name 3: 
	Title 3: 
	Phone 3: 
	Fax 3: 
	Email 3: 
	Permissions 1: Yes
	Permissions 2: 1
	Email Notifications 1: Off
	Email Notifications 2: Off
	Email Notifications 3: Off
	Email Notifications 4: Off
	Email Notifications 5: Off
	Email Notifications 6: Off
	Title 4: 
	Phone 4: 
	Fax 4: 
	Print First and Last Name 4: 
	Email 4: 
	Title 5: 
	Phone 5: 
	Fax 5: 
	Print First and Last Name 5: 
	Email 5: 
	Print First and Last Name 6: 
	Email 6: 
	Title 6: 
	Phone 6: 
	Fax 6: 
	Permissions 3: Yes
	Permissions 4: Yes
	Permissions 5: Yes
	Email Notifications 7: Off
	Email Notifications 8: Off
	Email Notifications 9: Off
	8Email Notifications 10: Off
	Email Notifications 11: Off
	Email Notifications 12: Off
	Name of Public Local Government 2: 
	Subaccount 1: 
	Subaccount 2: 
	Subaccount 3: 
	Subaccount 4: 
	Subaccount 5: 
	Subaccount 6: 
	Subaccount 7: 
	Subaccount 8: 
	Subaccount 9: 
	Subaccount 10: 
	Subaccount 11: 
	Subacccount 12: 
	Name of Public Local Government 3: 
	Subaccount 13: 
	Subaccount 14: 
	Subaccount 15: 
	Subaccount 16: 
	Subaccount 17: 
	Subaccount 18: 
	Subaccount 19: 
	Subaccount 20: 
	Subaccount 21: 
	Subacccount 22: 
	Subaccount 23: 
	Subaccount 24: 


